
               
 

AGENDA 
Regular Meeting 

November 15, 2011 - 7:30 p.m. 
 

City Council meeting packets are prepared several days prior to the meetings.  This information is reviewed and studied by the Councilmembers, eliminating 
lengthy discussions to gain basic understanding.  Timely action and short discussion on agenda items does not reflect lack of thought or analysis.  An 
informational packet is available for public inspection which is posted immediately on the bulletin board adjacent to the Council Chambers, which can be 
accessed Monday through Friday 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. excluding holidays. 

 
 1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 2. PLEDGE 
 
 3. ROLL CALL:  
    Mayor: Lyle Achziger 
          Mayor Pro-Tem:  John Morris 
                Council:  Laura Brown 
      Fred Burmont 
      April Neibauer 
       Jay Schaffer 
       Matthew Wells 
 
 4. PRESENTATION: 
  Robert Mayes 
 
 5. PROCLAMATION: 
  Proclaiming November 18, 2011, as Weld County Adoption Day 
 
 6. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (public comment on items not on agenda):   

The City Council welcomes you here and thanks you for your time and concerns.  If you wish to address the City Council, this is the time set on 
the agenda for you to do so.  When you are recognized, please step to the podium, state your name and address then address City Council.  
Your comments will be limited to two (2) minutes.  The City Council may not respond to your comments this evening, rather they may take your 
comments and suggestions under advisement and your questions may be directed to the appropriate staff person for follow-up.  Thank you! 

      
 7. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
 8. CONSENT AGENDA:   

The Consent Agenda contains items that can be decided without discussion.  Any Councilmember may request removal of any item they do not 
want to consider without discussion or wish to vote no on, without jeopardizing the approval of other items on the consent agenda.  Items 
removed will be placed under New Business in the order they appear on the agenda (this should be done prior to the motion to approve the 
agenda).  
A. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of November 1, 2011 
B. Ordinance No. 529-11 – Amends Exhibit A of Chapter 12.20 and Sections 15.50.100 and 15.52.045 of 

the Evans Municipal Code concerning Adjustments of Street, Fire and Park Impact Fees (2nd Rd) 
C. Ordinance No. 530-11 - 3rd Quarter Budget Revision (2nd Rd) 
 

9. NEW BUSINESS: 
A. Ordinance No. 531-11 - Eliminating Section 3.24 - Museum Fund and Section 3.28 - Senior Citizen 

Special Revenue Fund of the Evans Municipal Code (1st Rd) 
B. Resolution No. 31-2011 - Authorizing the Mayor to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement for the 

transfer of Emergency Services between the City of Evans and the Evans Fire Protection District 
 

 10. REPORTS 
  A. City Manager 
  B. City Attorney 
 
 11. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION(general comments): 

Please review the Audience Participation section listed at the beginning of the agenda for procedures on addressing City 
Council. 

    
 12. ADJOURNMENT 

If you would like to address City Council,  
please place your name on the sign-up sheet  

located at the back of the council room.   
You will be recognized to speak during the  

"audience participation" portion of the agenda. 
 



November
15 Worksession/City Council

21 6:00 PM Weld County Town/County Dinner - Island 
Grove Events Center

24 City Offices Closed - Thanksgiving Holiday

25 City Offices Closed - Thanksgiving Holiday

December
6 6:00 PM Worksession/City Council

20 6:00 PM Worksession/City Council

23 City Offices Closed - Christmas Holiday

26 City Offices Closed - Christmas Holiday

January
2 City Offices Closed - New Years Day Holiday

3 6:00 PM Worksession/City Council

17 6:00 PM Worksession/City Council

19 5:00 PM Evans Chamber BAH - Contemporary Cook - 
5750 W. 10th Street

November 2011 - October  2012

Yearly Planner

Nov 2011
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30

Dec 2011
S M T W T F S

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30 31

Jan 2012
S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14
15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

Feb 2012
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29

Mar 2012
S M T W T F S

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30 31

Apr 2012
S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14
15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30

May 2012
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30 31

Jun 2012
S M T W T F S

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30

Jul 2012
S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14
15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

Aug 2012
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

Sep 2012
S M T W T F S

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15
16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

Oct 2012
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31



 

 

 
PROCLAIMING NOVEMBER 18, 2011 AS  

“WELD COUNTY ADOPTION DAY” IN THE  
CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Evans recognizes the importance of giving children permanent, safe and 

loving families through adoption; and 
 
WHEREAS, more than 114,000 children in the United States foster care system are waiting to be 

adopted; and  
 
WHEREAS, more than 320 children in Colorado are waiting for permanent families; and 

 
WHEREAS, approximately 30 children in Weld County are waiting for permanent families; and 

 
WHEREAS, to help these children find permanent, nurturing families, the Weld County District 

Court will hold a special celebration on Friday, November 18, 2011 (in association with National 
Adoption Day on Saturday, November 19th) to finalize the adoptions of local children and join other 
organizations to celebrate all adoptions; and 

 
WHEREAS, this effort along with similar celebrations in all 50 states, the District of Columbia 

and Puerto Rico will offer children the chance to live with stable and loving families and encourage other 
dedicated individuals to make a powerful difference in the lives of a child through adoption; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Lyle Achziger, Mayor of the City of Evans, by virtue of the authority 
vested in me, do hereby proclaim November 18, 2011, as WELD COUNTY ADOPTION DAY in the 
City of Evans, and in so doing, urge all citizens to join in a national effort to raise awareness about the 
importance of adoption. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed the official seal 
of the City of Evans this 15th   day of November, 2011. 
 
ATTEST:       CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
                                            By:__________________________                                             
 City Clerk        Mayor 
 
 

 



 
  
 

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE:   November 15, 2011 
 
AGENDA NO.:   8.A. 

   
SUBJECT: Approval of Minutes  
 
PRESENTED BY:  City Clerk Staff 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Approval of minutes. 
  
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
N/A
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
       
N/A
  
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
"I move to approve the minutes as presented." 
  
 



 
 MINUTES 
 EVANS CITY COUNCIL 
 Regular Meeting 
 November 1, 2011 - 7:30 P.M. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Achziger called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE 
 
ROLL CALL: 
Present:  Mayor Achziger, Mayor Pro Tem Morris, Councilmembers Brown, Burmont, Neibauer, 

Schaffer and Wells 
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION: 
There was no audience participation. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Councilmember Schaffer made motion, seconded by Councilmember Brown to approve the agenda 
as presented.  Motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
A. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 18, 2011 
B. Ordinance No. 528-11 – Amends Section 12.20.040 of the Evans Municipal Code concerning 

methodology for adjusting Street Impact Fees for Inflation (2nd Rd) 
C. Resolution No. 29-2011 – 2012 Holiday Schedule 
 

Councilmember Wells made motion, seconded by Councilmember Schaffer to approve the 
Consent Agenda as presented.  Motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 

NEW BUSINESS: 
A. Public Hearing – New Tavern Liquor License – La Hacienda Rental Hall Corporation – 3001 8th 

Avenue 
 
 Mayor Achziger opened the Public Hearing. 
 
 Kim Betz, City Clerk, reported the following: 
 

Juan and Elia Perez, representing La Hacienda Rental Hall Corporation, submitted an application 
for a Tavern Liquor License located at 3001 8th Avenue (TriPointe building).   The nature of the 
proposed establishment is a rental hall for special events. 
 
The preliminary findings and report submitted for this Tavern liquor license application is as 
follows: 

 
The application was filed on September 16, 2011. 
 



Evans City Council 
November 1, 2011 
Page 2 
 

The City Attorney and Staff find that the applicant has submitted all the necessary information 
for a complete application. 
 
The evidence submitted by the applicant entitles them to possession of the premises where they 
propose to exercise the license applied for. 
 
No licensing authority has denied an application for a liquor license at this location within two 
years preceding the date of filing of this application. 
 
That selling liquor in the manner proposed in the application is not in violation of the zoning, fire 
and other applicable laws of the City of Evans or the State of Colorado.   
 
That the investigation reports from the Fire Department and Building Inspection Department 
indicates the premises are in compliance with the Building, Zoning and Fire Codes. 
 
That the building where the applicant proposes to exercise the privilege of selling liquor is not in 
violation of the 500 foot limitation from any public or parochial school or principal campus of 
any college, university or seminary. 
 
The neighborhood for purposes of determining the reasonable requirements of the neighborhood 
was established as a one (1) mile radius from the location.   
 
The applicant submitted petitions addressing the needs and desires of the neighborhood.  The 
petitions submitted reflect 100 signatures in favor of the proposed liquor license and there are no 
signatures showing opposition to the proposed liquor license.  The petitions are attached. 
 
The memo from the police department indicates no information was found relating to the 
applicants of a criminal history nature or which would reflect on the moral character of the 
applicants. 
 
Notice of Public Hearing was posted on the property on October 20, 2011 by the applicant’s 
representative and publication was made in the Greeley Tribune on October 21, 2011. 
 
Before granting any license, the local licensing authority shall consider the reasonable 
requirements of the neighborhood, the desires of the adult inhabitants, the moral character of the 
applicants and any other pertinent matters affecting the qualifications of the applicants.  
 
Staff is satisfied that the application for a new Tavern liquor license is complete and that all 
requirements regarding the new license application have been met. Staff recommends approval. 
 
Beto Loya, representing the applicant, explained the following:  His client has been in business 
in California for the past 13 years.  They run four family businesses which include a travel 
agency, wedding chapel, bridal shop and real estate investment. They are interested in expanding 
their entrepreneurship to Colorado.  His clients don’t have hands on experience in the liquor 



Evans City Council 
November 1, 2011 
Page 3 
 

business but they are in the process of getting TIPS trained.  The assistant manager has four years 
of event planning experience. The nature of their business is special events which would include 
quincineras, weddings, baptism, anniversaries, holiday parties etc.  They plan to hire Union 
Colony Security to provide security for their events. 
 
Mayor Achziger asked if anyone in attendance wished to speak in favor of the issuance of the 
Tavern Liquor License. No one responded. 
 
Mayor Achziger asked if anyone in attendance wished to speak in opposition to the issuance of 
the Tavern Liquor License. No one responded. 
 
Mayor Achziger closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Council felt there is a need in the community and surrounding area for this type of business.  
There was some concerns addressed regarding the consumption of alcohol for the family 
gatherings, but were pleased that they would be hiring security for these events. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Morris made motion, seconded by Councilmember Brown to approve the Tavern 
Liquor License for La Hacienda Rental Hall Corporation.  Motion passed with all voting in favor 
thereof. 

 
B. Ordinance No. 529-11 – Amends Exhibit A of Chapter 12.20 and Sections 15.50.100 and 

15.52.045 of the Evans Municipal Code concerning Adjustments of Street, Fire and Park Impact 
Fees (1st Rd) 

  
 Warren Jones, Fire Chief, reported the following: 
 

This ordinance adjusts the impact fees for fire, streets, and parks.  Sections 12.20.040D and 
15.52.100 allows for the adjustment of the Street and Park Impact Fees to be adjusted annually to 
reflect the effects of inflation utilizing the most recent actual historical factor for the previous 
fully completed year for which figures are available from the Consumer Price Index for the 
Denver-Boulder-Greeley area.  Section 15.50.100 allows for the adjustment of the Fire Impact 
Fees to reflect inflation, as reflected in the Engineering News Record Construction Index.   

 
The 2012 budget does not include any revenue from impact fees to be spent in the same year.  
Rather, the 2011 actual revenues are used in the 2012 budget process.  In that way, accurate 
revenue and expenditures can take place. 

 
Councilmember Schaffer made motion, seconded by Councilmember Wells to approve 
Ordinance No. 529-11 on first reading.  Motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 
C.  Ordinance No. 530-11 - 3rd Quarter Budget Revision 
 
 Jessica Gonifas, Finance Director, reported the following: 



Evans City Council 
November 1, 2011 
Page 4 
 

The City Council approves specific items during the year which require an amendment to the 
adopted budget as required by the City of Evans Charter (Section 7.3 & 8.6).  In this case, the 
revenues, expenditures (or expenses in enterprise funds) and transfers have been previously 
approved by the City Council.  Staff action is usually taken on these items immediately following 
Council direction.  Budget revisions are scheduled at quarterly intervals throughout the year in 
order to facilitate a flexible and accurate City budget.  This ordinance is the third revision to the 
2011 Operating and Capital Budget.   
 
The Budget Ordinance heading summarizes the changes to revenues, expenditures, and transfers 
by fund. Some of the items have been previously approved by the City Council which is listed 
below:  
 
The General Fund includes the following: 
• Item 1.1 relates to a reimbursement based on an agreement with Weld County for the 

services provided for the 2011 Colorado Employee Residence count. 
• Item 1.2 is the revenue and expenditure related to a workers comp insurance reimbursement. 
• Item 1.3 and 1.4 are reimbursements for a DUI patrol and grant in the Police Department. 
• Item 1.5 relates to increases in revenue and expenditures for a Senior trip in 2011. 
• Item 1.8 in both the General Fund and Cemetery Endowment funds represents an 

unanticipated increase in interest income in the Cemetery Endowment fund which is then 
transferred to the General Fund to offset the ongoing costs of maintaining the cemetery.  

• Item 1.9 was included in the 2011 & 2012 one-time lists but due to the timing of 
implementation of the new Weld County computer-aided dispatch system, the public safety 
computers need replaced this year to be compliant.  

 
The Conservation Trust Fund includes: 
• 1.6 relates to revenue and expenditures for a grant for playground surfacing in one of the 

Tuscany parks.  
 
The Finance Committee reviewed the proposed budget revision at their last meeting and did not 
recommend any changes.  
 
Councilmember Schaffer made motion, seconded by Councilmember Brown to approve 
Ordinance No. 530-11 on first reading.  Motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 

D. Resolution No. 30-2011 – Accepting a Letter of Intent to Purchase Real Property 
 
 Earl Smith, Director of Public Works, reported the following: 
 

This Resolution accepts a Letter of Intent (LOI) to Purchase Real Property.  The LOI is to 
purchase five (5) acres +/- of land from the nine  (9) acre City owned Tri Pointe property located 
along the east side of 11th Avenue at 29th Street Road.  
 
 



Evans City Council 
November 1, 2011 
Page 5 
 

The LOI outlines the terms and conditions under which the buyer and the City must conduct 
themselves until such time a purchase contract is approved. Once the purchase contract is in 
place the LOI becomes null and void.  
 
The proposed sale is for five (5) acres in the northwest corner of the site. The existing access 
road along the 29th Street Road alignment would remain in place. The roadway would be 
improved jointly by the buyer and the City as part of the project. The City will retain the 
remaining four acres of land. 
 
The proposed purchase price is $625,000. Of this amount, $500,000 would be credited to the 
land acquisition and $125,000 would be credited toward the improvement of 29th Street Road 
which bisects the Tri Pointe parcel.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Morris made motion, seconded by Councilmember Schaffer to adopt Resolution 
No. 30-2011.  Motion passed with all voting in favor thereof.  

 
REPORTS: 
The City Manager had nothing new to report. 
 
The City Attorney had nothing new to report. 
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION:  
There was no audience participation. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
Mayor Achziger adjourned the meeting at 8:06 p.m. 
 
              
          Kim Betz, City Clerk 



 

 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
 
DATE:  November 15, 2011    
 
AGENDA NO.: 8.B  

 
SUBJECT:  Ordinance No. 529-11  - Amending Exhibit A Of Chapter 12.20 And 

Sections 15.50.100 And 15.52.045 Of The Evans Municipal Code 
Concerning Adjustments Of Impact Fees (2nd Rd) 

 
PRESENTED BY: Warren Jones, Fire Chief 
   Earl Smith, Public Work and Planning Director 
 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:   
 
Attached is an ordinance to adjust the 2011 impact fees for fire, streets, and parks.  The fees are 
established each year based on specific Consumer Price Index comparisons, recommendations from 
the Commissioners, and/or specific studies. 
 
As the Council is aware, the 2012 budget does not include any revenue from impact fees to be spent 
in the same year.  Rather, the 2011 actual revenues are used in the 2012 budget process.  In that 
way, accurate revenue and expenditures can take place. 
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY:   
 
These rates are built into the revenue structure for the 2012 budget adoption. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the ordinance that establishes the impact fees for 
2012. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
“I move to approve Ordinance No. 529-11 on second reading.” 
“I move to deny adoption of Ordinance No. 529-11 on second reading.”  



  

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

ORDINANCE  NO. 529-11   
(SECOND READING) 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING EXHIBIT A OF CHAPTER 12.20 AND 
SECTIONS 15.50.100 AND 15.52.045 OF THE EVANS MUNICIPAL CODE 
CONCERNING ADJUSTMENTS OF IMPACT FEES 

 
WHEREAS, Section 12.20.040D of the Evans Municipal Code allows for the adjustment of 

the Street Impact Fees to be adjusted annually to reflect the effects of inflation utilizing the most 
recent actual historical factor for the previous fully completed year for which figures are available 
from the Consumer Price Index for the Denver-Boulder-Greeley area; and 

 
 WHEREAS, Section 15.50.100 of the Evans Municipal Code allows for the adjustment of the 
Fire Impact Fees to reflect inflation, as reflected in the Engineering News Record Construction 
Index; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 15.52.100 of the Evans Municipal Code allows for the adjustment 
of the Park Impact Fees to reflect inflation utilizing the most recent factor in the most recent 
period for which figures are available from the Consumer Price Index for the Denver-Boulder-
Greeley area.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

EVANS, COLORADO: 
 
Section 1.  Exhibit A of Chapter 12.20 of the Evans Municipal Code is hereby changed and 

will read as follows: 
    
 

EXHIBIT A 
         
         
      Residential Commercial/ Other 

Street Impact Fee    
Shopping 
Centers 

Non- 
residential 

Residential (per housing unit)          
210 Detached Housing    $1,792     
221 Attached Housing    $1,235      
Non-Residential Per Square Foot of Floor Area       
820 Commercial/Shop Ctr. 25,000 SF or less   $2.69   
820 Commercial/Shop Ctr. 25,001-50,000 SF    $2.48    
820 Commercial/Shop Ctr. 50,001-100,000 SF   $2.16    
820 Commercial/Shop Ctr. 100,001-400,000 SF   $1.59    
710 General Office 10,000 SF or less     $1.69  
710 General Office 10,001-25,000 SF     $1.35  
710 General Office 25,001-50,000 SF     $1.16  
720 Medical-Dental Office      $2.69  



 2 529-11 

610 Hospital       $1.24  
620 Nursing Homes       $0.42 
770 Business Park       $0.95  
110 Light Industrial       $0.52  
150 Warehousing       $0.35  
151 Mini-Warehouse*      $0.19  
Other Non-Residential        
310 Lodging (per room)      $610  
565 Day Care (per person)      $334  
530 High School (per student)      $131  
522 Middle School (per student)      $117  
520 Elementary School (per student)     $83  
*Also used for churches without weekday or school or day care functions.    

 
Section 2.  Section 15.50.100 of the Evans Municipal Code is amended to read as follows: 
 
15.50.100  Fire/Rescue Department Impact Fees. 
 

Effective January 1, 2012, the Fire/Rescue Impact Fees shall be as follows: 
 
FIRE/RESCUE DEPARTMENT IMPACT FEES: 
 
Each residential unit other than a motel or 
hotel. 

 
$768.00 per dwelling unit                     

 
Non-residential uses, but including a motel or 
hotel. 
Exception: Any detached accessory structure 
related to a single family residential use.        
                                          

 
$ 0.44 per square foot of each floor level of 
the building area 

Annually, the fees will be updated to reflect inflation, as reflected in the Engineering News Record 
Construction Index.   

 
Section 3.  Section 15.52.045 of the Evans Municipal Code is amended to read as follows: 
 

15.52.045   Park Development Impact Fees--Schedule of amounts. 
  A.   Effective January 1, 2012, the Park Development Impact Fees shall be as 

follows: 
    1. For each single-family dwelling, four thousand three hundred fifty six dollars 

($4,356); 
    2. For each dwelling unit in a duplex, apartment building, or in any other 

residential structure other than a motel or hotel, four thousand three hundred 
fifty six dollars ($4,356); 

    3. For each space in a mobile home park or community, four thousand three 
hundred fifty six dollars ($4,356); 

    4. Exception: Any detached accessory structures related to residential uses 
described in items 1, 2, or 3 as listed above shall be exempt from this fee. 

 
 



 3 529-11 

 
Section 4.  Publication and Effective Date.  This ordinance after its passage on final reading, 

shall be numbered, recorded, published and posted as required by the City Charter and the adoption, 
posting and publication shall be authenticated by the signature of the Mayor and the City Clerk, and 
by the Certificate of Publication.  This ordinance shall become effective January 1, 2012. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Evans on 
this 1st  day of  November , 2011. 

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

 
By:      
          Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

     
City Clerk 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING this 15th  day of  

November, 2011. 
 

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 

By:      
                  Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

     
City Clerk 



 
 
 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE: November 15, 2011  
 
AGENDA NO.:  8.C 

 
SUBJECT:   Ordinance No. 530-11 – 2011 Budget 3rd Revision - Amending 

Ordinance No. 520-11 and Appropriating Sum of Revenues and 
Fund Balances for the Amended 2011 City of Evans Budget (2nd 
Rd) 

 
PRESENTED BY:  Jessica Gonifas, CPA, Finance Director     
     
________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 

The City Council approves specific items during the year which require an amendment to 
the adopted budget as required by the City of Evans Charter (Section 7.3 & 8.6).  In this case, the 
revenues, expenditures (or expenses in enterprise funds) and transfers have been previously 
approved by the City Council.  Staff action is usually taken on these items immediately following 
Council direction.  Budget revisions are scheduled at quarterly intervals throughout the year in 
order to facilitate a flexible and accurate City budget.  
 

Ordinance No. 530-11 is the third revision to the 2011 Operating and Capital Budget.  
The original 2011 Budget was approved by Ordinance No. 501-10 on October 19th 2010, 
amended by Ordinance 515-11 on May 3rd 2011 and Ordinance 520-11 on August 1st 2011. 

  
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 

The Budget Ordinance heading summarizes the changes to revenues, expenditures, and 
transfers by fund. Some of the items have been previously approved by the City Council, those 
items requiring additional explanation will be described below. Attachment “A” identifies the 
details of each council action and Attachment “B” identifies the net impact on the revised budget. 
The following descriptions are listed in the same order as the funds on Attachment “A” and 
include the items which were not approved as a preliminary budget revision during the quarter.  

 
The General Fund includes the following: 

• Item 1.1 relates to a reimbursement based on an agreement with Weld County for 
the services provided for the 2011 Colorado Employee Residence count. 

• Item 1.2 is the revenue and expenditure related to a workers comp insurance 
reimbursement. 

• Item 1.3 and 1.4 are reimbursements for a DUI patrol and grant in the Police 
Department. 

• Item 1.5 relates to increases in revenue and expenditures for a Senior trip in 2011. 
 



• Item 1.8 in both the General Fund and Cemetery Endowment funds represents an 
unanticipated increase in interest income in the Cemetery Endowment fund which 
is then transferred to the General Fund to offset the ongoing costs of maintaining 
the cemetery.  

• Item 1.9 was included in the 2011 & 2012 one-time lists but due to the timing of 
implementation of the new Weld County computer-aided dispatch system, the 
public safety computers need replaced this year to be compliant.  

 
The Conservation Trust Fund includes: 
• 1.6 relates to revenue and expenditures for a grant for playground surfacing in one 

of the Tuscany parks.  
 
The Finance Committee reviewed the proposed budget revision at their last meeting and 

did not recommend any changes.  
 
Attachment “A” identifies the detailed changes for the proposed revisions to the 2011 

Budget. The details are also summarized in the heading of the appropriation ordinance. The 
updated Long Range Plans are also attached. 

 
Attachment “C” includes a summary of any changes in projected fund balances from the 

adoption of the 2012 budget. 
 
Details of all financial items are available for Council or Citizens upon request from the 

Finance Department by contacting Jessica Gonifas at 970-475-1106 or jgonifas@ci.evans.co.us . 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the ordinance.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

I move to approve Ordinance No. 530-11 on second reading. 
 

I move to deny approval of Ordinance No. 530-11 on second reading. 
 

 

mailto:jgonifas@ci.evans.co.us


   

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 530-11 
(SECOND READING) 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2011 BUDGET; INCREASING 
GENERAL FUND REVENUES BY $282,915, APPROPRIATING GENERAL 
FUND EXPENDITURES OF $55,815, INCREASING CONSERVATION 
TRUST FUND REVENUES BY $50,000, APPROPRIATING 
CONSERVATION TRUST FUND EXPENDITURES OF $50,000, 
INCREASING FIRE IMPACT FUND REVENUES BY $45,000, 
APPROPRIATING FIRE IMPACT FUND EXPENDITURES OF $23,500,  
INCREASING CEMETERY ENDOWMENT FUND REVENUES BY $6,000, 
AND APPROPRIATING CEMETERY ENDOWMENT FUND 
EXPENDITURES OF $6,000. 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.6 of the Evans Home Rule Charter the Council 

may make additional appropriations by ordinance during the fiscal year; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has certified that additional funds are available for 
appropriations in each fund from actual and anticipated revenues of the current year and prior 
year cash reserves; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council is advised that certain revenues, expenditures and transfers 
must be approved by ordinance. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EVANS, COLORADO THE FOLLOWING: 
 

Section 1:  Upon the City Manager’s certification that there are current and prior year 
revenues available for appropriation in the General Fund, Conservation Trust Fund, Fire Impact 
Fund, and Cemetery Endowment Fund and the City Council hereby makes supplemental 
appropriations as itemized in Attachment “A” attached hereto. 
 

Section 2:  The City Council hereby authorizes and directs the City Manager to enter into 
such contracts and execute such documents on behalf of the City as may be necessary and 
customary to expend the funds hereby appropriated for all operations, capital projects and debt 
within this budget as amended in accordance with the requirements of the Home Rule Charter 
and the City’s Financial Policies. 
 

Section 3:  The adoption of this Ordinance will promote the health, safety and general 
welfare of the Evans community. 
 

Section 4:  If any provision of this Ordinance or portion thereof is held by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity or unconstitutionality 
shall not affect any other provision which can be given effect without the invalid portion. 
 



  530-11 2 

Section 5:  All prior ordinances, resolutions, or other acts, or parts thereof, by the City of 
Evans in conflict with this Ordinance are hereby repealed, except that this repealer shall not be 
construed to revive any previously repealed or expired act, ordinance or resolution, or part 
thereof. 
 

Section 6:  This Ordinance shall be effective following the adoption by Section 8.5 of the 
Home Rule Charter. 
 

PASSED and APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Evans 
on this 1st    day of November, 2011. 

 
CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

 
        By:      

Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
     

City Clerk 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING this 15th   day of 

November, 2011. 
 

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

 
        By:      

Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
     

City Clerk 



Attachment A
2011 Budget Revision #3 V4

# Description Fund/Funding Source Reserves Rev Exp
1.1 Weld County - Colorado Employee Residence Count Services 246,000    6,600         

General: 2011 State Severence Tax & 
Federal Mineral Lease Tax

1.2 Workers Comp - Temporary Disability Reimbursement 7,100        7,100         
General: Pinnacol Reimbursement

1.3 PD carpet 2,300        2,400         
General: DUI Patrol Reimbursement

1.4 PD training 1,515        1,515         
General: Grant

1.5 Senior trips 20,000      20,000       
General: Senior Fees

1.8 Cemetery Endowment interest 6,000        
General: Transfer from Cemetery Endowment

1.9 PS MDT replacement 18,200       
General: Excess 2011 Revenue

Total Fund -          282,915  55,815     
Fund Balance Impact 227,100  

1.6 Playground surfacing 50,000      50,000       
Conservation Trust: Grant

Total Fund -          50,000    50,000     
Fund Balance Impact -          

1.7 Fire district project
Fire Impact: Fire Impact Fees 45,000      23,500       

Total Fund -          45,000    23,500     
Fund Balance Impact 21,500    

1.8 Transfer to General Fund
Cemetery Endowment: Interest 6,000        6,000         

Total Fund -          6,000      6,000       
Fund Balance Impact -          



Attachment B
2011 Budget Revision #3 V4

Fund/Department
Beginning 
Balance

Operating & 
Capital 
Revenue Transfers In

Operating 
Expenditures

Capital Exp / 
Asset 

Management / 
Debt Transfers Out

Budgeted 
Balance

General Fund 2,290,648          
General Government 9,275,094          1,238,393          2,468,732          745,530             (693)                   
Community Development 560,026             
Public Safety 4,858,247          
Public Works 1,483,178          
Culture, Parks & Recreation 1,075,344          

Total General Fund 2,290,648          9,275,094          1,238,393          10,445,527        745,530             (693)                   1,613,770          

Emergency Contingency Fund 2,324,668          -                     (77,637)             -                     -                     -                     2,247,031          

Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund -                     3,000                 76,944               -                     -                     -                     79,944               

Fire Impact Fund 75,103               54,850               -                     101,290             -                     -                     28,663               

Street Impact Fund 437,069             5,929                 -                     -                     332,000             -                     110,998             

Parks Impact Fund 149,685             2,032                 -                     -                     100,000             -                     51,717               

Conservation Trust Fund 321,734             259,628             -                     -                     539,500             -                     41,862               

Refuse Collection Fund 180,530             595,706             -                     551,882             -                     30,450               193,904             

Capital Projects Fund - Streets 221,691             935,983             -                     190,000             871,051             -                     96,623               

Debt Service Fund - GO Bonds 506,810             505,000             -                     -                     505,210             -                     506,600             

Waterworks Fund 1) 2,254,510          4,070,152          -                     3,171,650          1,156,930          643,746             1,352,336          

Wastewater Fund 1) 1,371,344          1,116,853          -                     846,794             581,961             423,394             636,048             

Storm Drainage Fund 1) 736,495             475,893             -                     25,600               965,000             140,803             80,985               

Volunteer Firefighters Pension Fund 455,022             151,594             -                     143,026             -                     -                     463,590             

Cemetery Endowment Fund 48,005               8,000                 -                     8,000                 -                     -                     48,005               

TOTAL ALL FUNDS 11,373,314        17,459,714        1,237,700          15,483,769        5,797,182          1,237,700          7,552,076          

1) Beginning balance in Proprietary funds is beginning cash balance from Long Range Plans.



Attachment C
2010 Budget Rev #3 V4

2012 Projected Beginning 2012 Projected Beginning Variance
Original Budget 2011 Revision #3 V4

General Fund 1,743,583                          1,724,156                           (19,427)  
Emergency Contingency 2,247,031                          2,247,031                           -         
Cemetery Perpetual Care 79,944                               79,944                                -         
Fire Impact 7,163                                 28,663                                21,500   
Street Impact 110,998                             110,998                              -         
Parks Impact 73,716                               73,716                                -         
Conservation Trust 41,862                               41,862                                -         
Refuse Collection 193,904                             193,904                              -         
Captial Projects - Streets 96,623                               96,623                                -         
Debt Service - GO Bonds 506,600                             506,600                              -         
Water 1,352,336                          1,352,336                           -         
Wastewater 636,048                             636,048                              -         
Storm Drainage 80,985                               80,985                                -         
Volunteer Firefighters 463,590                             463,590                              -         
Cemetery Endowment 48,005                               48,005                                -         

Total 7,682,388                          7,684,461                           2,073     

Projected Fund Balance Summary



2009 2010 2011 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Actual Actual Budget V4 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Beginning Fund Balance 2,573,063          1,521,391          2,290,648          2,290,648          1,724,156          1,527,870          1,653,705          1,404,536          1,091,483          

Revenues:
Sales Tax 4,680,421        4,958,797        4,441,737        4,441,737        4,732,402        4,806,111          4,881,294        4,957,981        5,036,201        
Property Tax 1,526,236        1,701,476        1,463,370        1,463,370        1,524,462        1,539,707          1,555,104        1,570,655        1,586,361        
Other Taxes 915,613           487,345           805,243           805,243           540,404           565,638            568,156           569,218           570,300           
License & Permits 665,016           657,342           694,358           720,158           734,860           747,858            764,289           781,166           798,505           
Intergovernmental 674,699           643,209           730,476           730,476           630,240           667,787            689,663           689,663           689,663           
Charges for Services 517,674           536,714           487,010           487,010           512,510           538,733            546,794           546,846           546,899           
Fines & Forfeitures 373,189           502,774           418,000           418,000           430,000           446,000            461,000           476,000           476,000           
Assessments 13,772             13,803             4,000               4,000               4,000               4,000                4,000               4,000               4,000               
Misc 244,436           154,206           230,900           230,900           168,068           171,072            179,475           188,299           197,564           
   Total revenues 9,611,056        9,655,667        9,275,094        9,300,894        9,276,947        9,486,906          9,649,776        9,783,828        9,905,494        
   CT 9,611,056                       9,655,667                       9,275,094                       9,300,894                       9,276,947                       9,486,906                       9,649,776                       9,783,828                       9,905,494                       

    Transfers In 895,915           1,039,201        1,238,393        1,238,393        1,258,083        1,277,674          1,297,533        1,317,362        1,336,609        

Total Available Funds 10,506,971      10,694,868      10,513,487      10,539,287      10,535,030      10,764,580        10,947,309      11,101,190      11,242,103      
      Total Annual Increase 0.47% 1.79% -1.70% -1.45% -0.04% 2.18% 1.70% 1.41% 1.27%
Expenditures:
GG Personnel 1,088,221        1,011,892        1,123,489        1,115,287        1,108,984        1,147,971          1,198,596        1,251,454        1,306,643        
GG Operations 1,271,885        1,086,111        1,345,243        1,345,243        1,286,153        1,284,545          1,294,713        1,035,604        1,050,538        
General Government 2,360,106        2,098,003        2,468,732        2,460,530        2,395,136        2,432,516          2,493,310        2,287,058        2,357,181        

38.51% -11.11% 17.67% 17.28% -2.66% 1.56% 2.50% -8.27% 3.07%
CD Personnel 427,398           441,410           376,586           370,686           352,761           366,780            382,955           399,843           417,476           
CD Operations 63,054             100,216           183,440           183,440           115,142           116,869            118,622           120,401           122,207           
Community Development 490,452           541,627           560,026           554,126           467,903           483,648            501,577           520,244           539,683           

28.10% 10.43% 3.40% 2.31% -15.56% 3.37% 3.71% 3.72% 3.74%
PS Personnel 4,148,876        3,946,226        4,290,522        4,232,009        4,305,514        4,459,653          4,656,323        4,861,667        5,076,067        
PS Operations 446,614           374,082           567,725           567,725           384,272           390,036            395,887           401,825           407,853           
Public Safety 4,595,490        4,320,308        4,858,247        4,799,734        4,689,786        4,849,689          5,052,210        5,263,492        5,483,919        

9.68% -5.99% 12.45% 11.10% -2.29% 3.41% 4.18% 4.18% 4.19%
PW Personnel 936,471           778,727           838,934           831,876           845,415           878,850            917,607           958,074           1,000,325        
PW Operations 580,709           563,773           644,244           644,244           653,908           663,716            673,672           683,777           694,034           
Public Works 1,517,180        1,342,500        1,483,178        1,476,120        1,499,323        1,542,566          1,591,279        1,641,851        1,694,358        

-4.36% -11.51% 10.48% 9.95% 1.57% 2.88% 3.16% 3.18% 3.20%
CPR Personnel 1,304,952        801,899           594,489           589,576           576,762           581,488            607,131           633,906           661,861           
CPR Operations 312,903           237,970           480,855           480,855           515,518           523,251            531,099           539,066           547,152           
Culture, Parks & Rec 1,617,855        1,039,869        1,075,344        1,070,431        1,092,280        1,104,738          1,138,231        1,172,972        1,209,013        

-0.06% -35.73% 3.41% 2.94% 2.04% 1.14% 3.03% 3.05% 3.07%
Asset Management 332,741           51,919             497,450           497,450           316,898           329,297            304,487           398,931           318,159           
Debt 116,147           80,396             248,080           248,080           50,000             50,000              50,000             50,000             50,000             
Total operating expenditures 11,029,971      9,474,622        11,191,058      11,106,472      10,511,327      10,792,454        11,131,093      11,334,548      11,652,314      
      Total Annual Increase 13.86% -14.10% 18.12% 17.22% -5.36% 2.67% 3.14% 1.83% 2.80%
   Capital Improvements -                   -                   -                   -                   -                    -                    -                   -                   -                   
   Transfers Out 528,671           450,989           (693)                 (693)                 219,989           (153,709)           65,384             79,695             45,906             

Excess Revenue Over (Under) 
Expenditures (1,051,671)         769,257             (676,878)            (566,492)            (196,285)            125,834             (249,169)            (313,053)            (456,117)            

Ending Fund Balance 1,521,391          2,290,648          1,613,770          1,724,156          1,527,870          1,653,705          1,404,536          1,091,483          635,366             
   CT 1,521,391                     2,290,648                     

Minimum Target Reserve - One Month i 919,164           789,552           932,588           925,539           875,944           899,371            927,591           944,546           971,026           

Available Funds 602,227           1,501,096        681,182           798,617           651,927           754,334            476,945           146,937           (335,660)          

City of Evans General Fund Long Range Financial Plan



2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Actual Actual Budget V4 Budget Projected Projected Projected

Beginning Fund Balance 255,444              250,714        321,734       41,862          64,281             238,923           418,507           

Revenues
Intergovernmental 169,644              163,722        259,000       172,000       174,000           176,000           178,000           
Interest Earnings 3,878                  3,137            628              419               643                  3,584               6,278               
   Total Revenues 173,522              166,859        259,628       172,419       174,643           179,584           184,278           
   CT 173,522                                166,859                       259,628                     172,419                      174,643                           179,584                           184,278                           

    Transfers In -                     -                -              -                -                  -                  -                  

Total Available Funds 173,522              166,859        259,628       172,419       174,643           179,584           184,278           

Expenditures
Supplies & Services 1,764                  -                14,500         -                -                  -                  -                  
Asset Management 46,000                -                10,000         -                -                  -                  -                  
Capital 130,488              95,839          515,000       150,000       -                  -                  -                  
Total Expenditures 178,252              95,839          539,500       150,000       -                  -                  -                  

Transfers Out -                     -                -              -                -                  -                  -                  

Excess Revenue Over (Under) 
Expenditures (4,730)                  71,020            (279,872)       22,419           174,643             179,584             184,278             

Ending Fund Balance 250,714              321,734        41,862         64,281          238,923           418,507           602,785           
   CT 250,714                                321,734                       

2009-2016 Capital Improvement Plan

2009 Actual 2010 Actual 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Equipment 9,097                  
Playground Equipment 29,086                  
Dog Park 19,481                
Skate Park Improvements 9,005                  -                35,000
Riverside Ball Park Developments 56,130                61,688
Tuscany Mini Parks 7,689                  14,347 421,000
Riverside Soccer Fields Drainage 19,805
Ridge Park Improvements (Part Grant) 59,000
Pave Riverside Pkwy 150,000
Conservation Trust Fund Total 130,488              95,839          515,000       150,000       -                  -                  -                  

* Capital is budgeted at 90% of projected ending fund balance 375,816        501,176       192,853       215,031           376,657           542,506           

City of Evans Conservation Trust Fund Long Range Financial Plan 



2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Actual Actual Budget V4 Budget Projected Projected Projected

Beginning Fund Balance 71,090              49,876              75,103              7,163                7,978                8,177                8,382                

Revenues
Assessments 23,517              18,929              54,000              -                    -                    -                    -                    
Sale of Fixed Assets -                    42,000              -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Interest Earnings 1,250                732                   850                   814                   199                   204                   210                   
   Total Revenues 24,767            61,661            54,850            814                  199                 204                 210                 
   CT

    Transfers In -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Total Available Funds 24,767            61,661            54,850            814                  199                 204                 210                 

Expenditures
Personel 3,526                
Supplies & Services 45,981              32,907              101,290            -                    -                    -                    -                    
Total Expenditures 45,981            36,433            101,290          -                   -                  -                  -                  

Transfers Out -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Excess Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures (21,214)           25,228            (46,440)           814                  199                 204                 210                 

Ending Fund Balance 49,876            75,103            28,663            7,978               8,177              8,382              8,591              
   CT 49,876                           75,103                           

City of Evans Fire Impact Fund Long Range Financial Plan 



2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Actual Actual Budget V4 Budget Projected Projected Projected

Beginning Fund Balance 50,007                48,206             48,005             48,005                48,005               48,005               48,005               

Revenues
Investment Income 1,452                  3,029               8,000               2,000                  2,000                 2,000                 2,000                 
   Total Revenues 1,452                  3,029               8,000               2,000                  2,000                 2,000                 2,000                 
   CT 1,452                                  3,029                               8,000                               2,000                                   2,000                                   2,000                                   2,000                                   

    Transfers In -                     -                   -                   -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Available Funds 1,452                  3,029               8,000               2,000                  2,000                 2,000                 2,000                 

Expenditures
Culture, Parks & Recreation 3,253                  3,230               8,000               2,000                  2,000                 2,000                 2,000                 
Total Expenditures 3,253                  3,230               8,000               2,000                  2,000                 2,000                 2,000                 

Transfers Out -                     -                   -                   -                     -                     -                     -                     

Excess Revenue Over (Under) 
Expenditures (1,801)                 (201)                   -                     -                       -                       -                       -                       

Ending Fund Balance 48,206                48,005             48,005             48,005                48,005               48,005               48,005               
   CT 48,206                               48,005                           

**$48,000 restricted corpus

City of Evans Cemetery Endowment Fund Long Range Financial Plan 



 

 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
 
DATE:  November 15, 2011   
 
AGENDA NO.: 8.A  

 
 SUBJECT:  Ordinance No. 531-11 - Eliminating Section 3.24 - Museum Fund and Section 3.28 - 

Senior Citizen Special Revenue Fund of the Evans Municipal Code (1st Rd) 
 
PRESENTED BY: Jessica Gonifas, CPA, Finance Director 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The City municipal code outlines which accounting funds are authorized.  The City’s Financial 
Policies recommend that “The City will minimize the number of funds…” (III.A.1.). This increases 
the efficiency within the financial management system.  
 
The code currently includes two funds (Sections 3.24 Museum Fund & 3.28 Senior Citizen Special 
Revenue Fund) which have outlived the necessity of being separate from the General Fund and have 
not been in use for several years.  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
N/A 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff is recommending the elimination of the funds in order to follow the Financial Policies and 
increase the efficiency within the financial management system.    
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 

I move to approve Ordinance No. 531-11 on first reading. 
 

I move to deny approval of Ordinance No. 531-11 on first reading. 
  
  



 CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. 531-11 

 
ELIMINATING SECTION 3.24, MUSEUM FUND, AND SECTION 3.28, SENIOR 
CITIZEN SPECIAL REVENUE FUND, OF THE EVANS MUNICIPAL CODE 

 
 WHEREAS, when the City of Evans adopted its new financial policies, one of the goals was 
to increase efficiency in accounting methods; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the primary goal to meet the policy is to reduce the number of funds necessary 
for improved efficiency; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the funds specified under Section 3.24, Museum Fund, and Section 3.28, Senior 
Citizen Special Revenue Fund, are no longer used as a result; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it has been recommended by the Finance Department that these funds be 
completely eliminated from the Evans Municipal Code. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EVANS, COLORADO: 
 

Section 1.  That Section 3.24, Museum Fund and Section 3.28, Senior Citizen Special 
Revenue Fund, are hereby repealed from the Evans Municipal Code. 

 
Section 2.   Publication and Effective Date.   This Ordinance, after its passage on final 

reading, shall be numbered, recorded, published, and posted as required by the City Charter and the 
adoption, posting, and publication shall be authenticated by the signature of the Mayor and City 
Clerk, and by the Certificate of Publication.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon final 
passage. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Evans on 
this 15th  day of  November , 2011. 

 
ATTEST:      CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
_____________________    By:________________________ 

City Clerk       Mayor 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING this 6th  day of  

December, 2011. 
 
ATTEST:      CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
_____________________    By:________________________ 

City Clerk       Mayor 



 
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 
 
DATE:                                    November 15, 2011 
 
AGENDA NO.: 9.B  

 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 31-2011 - Authorizing the Mayor to enter into an 

Intergovernmental Agreement for the transfer of emergency 
services between the City of Evans and the Evans Fire Protection 
District 

 
PRESENTED BY: Aden Hogan, City Manager 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:  
 
This intergovernmental agreement (IGA) between the City of Evans and the Evans Fire 
Protection District is the last step in the creation of the Evans Fire Protection District. It transfers 
all emergency services as defined in the service plan as the services currently provided by the 
Evans Fire Rescue Department of the City of Evans from the City to the new District. There are 
no changes to this IGA from that approved by City Council as part of the adoption of the service 
plan in Ordinance 509-11 adopted on second reading on April 4, 2011. 
 
The service plan requires that the City and District enter into this IGA within 30 days of the 
organization of the District. The Weld County District Court issued an Order Declaring 
Organization of the Evans Fire Protection and Certifying the Initial Board of Directors on 
November 4, 2011 after a successful organizational election on November 1. This order was 
recorded with the Weld County Clerk and Recorder on November 9, 2011 and the District was 
legally organized on that date. The Fire District Board of Directors is scheduled to sign this IGA 
on November 28, 2011. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends the approval of this resolution. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
“I move to adopt Resolution No. 31-2011.” 
“I move to deny adoption of Resolution No.31-2011 .” 

 



CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 31-2011 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF EVANS 
TO ENTER INTO THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE 
TRANSFER OF EMERGENCY SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
EVANS AND THE EVANS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, AS ATTACHED 
TO AND INCORPORATED BY THE APPROVED SERVICE PLAN OF THE 
EVANS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT.  

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Evans is a home rule city duly organized and existing under the 
Constitution of the State of Colorado and the Home Rule Charter of the City; and, 
 

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 24-2010, on July 20, 2010 the Council established a 
project to organize the Evans Fire Protection District ("Fire District") pursuant to the Colorado 
Special District Act ("Act"), Colorado Revised Statutes ("C.R.S.") § 32-1-101, et seq., to provide 
the fire suppression, fire prevention and public education, rescue, extrication, and emergency 
medical services (collectively, "Emergency Services") currently provided by the City's Fire 
Rescue Department.  Because the Fire District's boundaries will be the same as the corporate 
boundaries of the City, and will not include any area located outside the City, the Council has 
sole and exclusive authority to approve or disapprove the proposed Service Plan under the Act, 
C.R.S. §§ 32-1-203(1), -204.5 and -205(1); and 

 
WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 24-2010, the Council established the Fire District 

Taskforce, which was charged with developing and submitting to the Council a proposed Service 
Plan for the Fire District that contains the information required by and satisfies the criteria set 
forth in C.R.S. §§ 32-1-202(2) and -203(2); and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 7, 2011, the Fire District Taskforce submitted to Council a 

proposed Service Plan for the Fire District in accordance with the provisions of the Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 15, 2011 the Council held a public hearing regarding the proposed 

Service Plan and the attached Intergovernmental Agreement for the Transfer of Emergency 
Services between the City of Evans and the Evans Fire Protection District ("IGA"), and, on 
second reading on April 4, 2011, the Council adopted Ordinance 509-11 approving the Service 
Plan and IGA; and 
 

WHEREAS, on May 12, 2011, the Weld County District Court ordered an election to be 
held November 1, 2011 pursuant to the Act, C.R.S. § 32-1-305 ("Election") and the Colorado 
Uniform Election Code, C.R.S. § 1-1-101 et seq., at which Election the eligible electors of the 
proposed Fire District would vote for or against the organization of the Fire District; and 

 
WHEREAS, on November 1, 2011, at the Election, the eligible electors voted for or 

against the organization of the Fire District, and also voted for or against an initial operating mill 
levy for the proposed Fire District, to remove certain State revenue and spending limits on the 
proposed Fire District, and to approve the IGA between the City and the Fire District; and 



 2 Reso. 31-2011 

 
WHEREAS, at the Election, the eligible electors of the proposed Fire District voted to 

approve the organization of the Fire District, its initial operating mill levy, removal of certain 
State revenue and spending limits, and the IGA between the City and the Fire District; and 

 
WHEREAS, on November 4, 2011, the Weld County District Court issued an Order 

Declaring Organization of the Evans Fire Protection District and Certifying the Initial Board of 
Directors ("Order"); and 

 
WHEREAS, on November 9, 2011, the Order of the Weld County District Court was 

recorded with the Weld County Clerk and Recorder, and the Evans Fire Protection District was 
legally organized for all purposes under the Act, C.R.S. § 32-1-305, -105; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Fire District's approved Service Plan requires that the City of Evans and 
the Evans Fire Protection District execute the IGA within 30 days of the Fire District's 
organization date. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EVANS, COLORADO, THAT: 
 

The Mayor is hereby authorized to enter into the attached Intergovernmental Agreement for 
the Transfer of Emergency Services between the City of Evans and the Evans Fire Protection 
District, as attached to and incorporated by the approved Service Plan of the Evans Fire Protection 
District.  
 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 
City of Evans on this   15th      day of November, 2011. 
 
ATTEST:       CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
        By:          
 City Clerk        Mayor 
 



 
                  
  

             Intergovernmental Agreement for the Transfer of Emergency Services Page 1 
 
881899.14 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT  
FOR THE TRANSFER OF EMERGENCY SERVICES   

 
This Intergovernmental Agreement For The Transfer of Emergency Services 

("Agreement") is entered into by and between the City of Evans ("City") and the Evans Fire 
Protection District ("Fire District").  The City and the Fire District are referred to collectively as 
the “Parties” or individually as a "Party".  
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the City is a Colorado municipal corporation.  Since its incorporation in 
1869, the City has been charged with protecting the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens 
and property within its corporate boundaries.  For nearly 100 years, the City, through its Fire 
Rescue Department, has provided fire and other emergency services to the citizens and 
property within its corporate boundaries; ambulance services are currently provided by Weld 
County Paramedic Services.  Today, the Fire Rescue Department provides fire and other 
emergency services through a workforce of 15 highly motivated and professionally trained 
firefighters and support personnel, and approximately 36 volunteer firefighters; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council and Senior Staff, with the assistance of outside 
consultants, have carefully evaluated the options for providing sustainable, high quality, and 
cost-effective Emergency Services (defined below) to the City's citizens and their property in 
future years.  The City Council has determined that the health, safety, and welfare of its citizens 
and their property will be best served by organizing the Fire District pursuant to the Act (defined 
below) and by transferring responsibility for providing the Emergency Services to the Fire 
District upon its organization; and  
 

WHEREAS, C.R.S. § 29-1-203 permits and encourages local governments to make the 
most efficient and effective use of their powers and responsibilities by cooperating and 
contracting with other local governments in order to provide any lawfully authorized function, 
service, or facility; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into this Agreement to ensure the smooth 
transfer of Emergency Services to the Fire District upon its organization.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, and 
undertakings set forth in this Agreement, the Parties mutually agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE I 
Definitions 

 
 In addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement, the following definitions 
apply to this Agreement: 
  

1. "Act" means the Colorado Special District Act, C.R.S. § 32-1-101, et seq. 
 
2. "Board" means the Board of Directors of the Fire District, its governing body. 

 
3. "City Council" means the City Council of the City, its governing body. 
 



  
  

             Intergovernmental Agreement For Transfer of Emergency Services Page 2 
881899.14 

4. "Consumer Price Index" means the United States Department of Labor, 
Bureau of Labor Statistics, Consumer Price Index, all Urban Consumers, all items, 
Denver/Boulder/Greeley Urban (1982-84, equals 100), or the successor of that Index. 
 

5. "C.R.S." means the Colorado Revised Statutes, including all amendments 
thereto.  

 
6. "Effective Date" means the date the last Party signs this Agreement.   

 
7. "Emergency Services" means all authorized or mandated services, functions, 

and activities of a fire protection district as authorized in the Colorado Revised Statutes 
including, without limitation, fire suppression and related investigatory activities, fire prevention 
and public education services, emergency rescue and extrication services, hazardous 
materials services, and emergency medical services.  The term "Emergency Services" does 
not include ambulance services, which are currently provided by Weld County Paramedic 
Services; however, nothing in this Agreement shall limit or prohibit the Fire District's authority 
under the Act to provide ambulance services directly to the citizens and their property at any 
time in the future in the sole discretion of the Fire District Board. 

 
8. "Fire Administration Office" means the Evans Fire Rescue Administration 

Office located at 1100 37th Street, Evans, Colorado 80620. 
 

9. "Fire Apparatus" means all of the emergency apparatus and vehicles owned or 
leased by the City or the City's Fire Rescue Department as of the Organization Date, or that 
are purchased or leased by the City during the Transition Period, and which the Fire Rescue 
Department or the Fire District uses in providing Emergency Services. 

 
10. "Fire Equipment" means all of the personal property (other than Fire 

Apparatus) owned or leased by the City or the City's Fire Rescue Department as of the 
Organization Date, or that are purchased or leased by the City during the Transition Period, 
and which the Fire Rescue Department or the Fire District uses in providing Emergency 
Services.  

 

11. "Fire Stations" means Fire Station #1 located at 3918 Denver Street, Evans, 
Colorado, and Fire Station #2 located at 2100 37th Street, Evans, Colorado. 

 
12. "Fire Code" means, within the City's corporate boundaries, (a) the 2006 edition 

of the International Fire Code with the local amendments, as adopted by the City, and (b) any 
subsequent edition of the International Fire Code, or amendments to the current or any future 
edition of the Fire Code, adopted by the City after the Effective Date pursuant to this 
Agreement.  The term also includes all Nationally Recognized Standards incorporated into (by 
appendices or otherwise) or referenced by the Fire Code. 

 
13. "Organization Date" means the date upon which the Fire District is legally 

organized for all purposes under the Act.  
 

14. "Service Plan" means the Service Plan approved by the City Council and the 
Weld County District Court incident to the legal organization of the Fire District. 

 
15. "Training Equipment" means all of the Emergency Services training simulators, 

equipment, props, and other personal property located at the Evans Municipal Operations 
Center, 1948 40th Street, Evans, Colorado, owned or leased by the City or the City's Fire 



  
  

             Intergovernmental Agreement For Transfer of Emergency Services Page 3 
881899.14 

Rescue Department as of the Organization Date, or that are purchased or leased by the City 
during the Transition Period, including the two-story fire simulator, propane tanks and related 
piping and equipment, confined space props, flammable liquid pit, and all other simulators, 
equipment, props, and other personal property, which the City's Fire Rescue Department or 
Fire District uses for Emergency Services simulation and training. 

 
16. "Training Site" means the 1.1 acre real property site located at the Evans 

Municipal Operations Center, 1948 40th Street, Evans, Colorado, historically used by the City's 
Fire Rescue Department for Emergency Services simulation and training, and the permanent 
concrete foundation pads and improved driving surfaces located at such site. 

 
17. "Transition Period" means the period between the Organization Date and the 

date when: a) Step Two of the Funding Process (Section V(2)(b), Service Plan) has been 
accomplished; and (b) the Fire District has received sufficient ad valorem revenues and other 
funds to be financially capable of providing the Emergency Services directly to the citizens and 
property within its jurisdiction and boundaries. 
 

ARTICLE II 
Jurisdiction and Service Area 

 
1. Conforming the Parties' Boundaries.  The Parties intend that the Fire District's 

boundaries and jurisdiction shall at all times include all property located within the City's 
corporate boundaries, as such boundaries may be adjusted from time to time through 
annexation, de-annexation, or otherwise.  To this end, the Parties agree: 

 
a. The City and the Fire District shall each use its best reasonable efforts to 

include within the boundaries and jurisdiction of the Fire District all land that, as of the 
Organization Date, is (i) within the City but is not within the Fire District's boundaries or (ii) not 
within the City or the Fire District's boundaries, but which is subsequently annexed by the City. 

 
b. At all times after the Organization Date, the City shall require, as an 

express condition of annexing any real property to the City, that the owner of the real property 
agree to include the real property into the Fire District’s jurisdiction and shall petition the Fire 
District for inclusion within 90 calendar days of the real property being annexed to the City.  This 
requirement shall be contained in any annexation agreement approved by the City Council after 
the Organization Date.  The Fire District shall reasonably assist the property owner in including 
the real property into the Fire District’s jurisdiction.  

 
c. The City and the Fire District shall each assist the other and cooperate 

fully in all respects to undertake and pursue to conclusion all actions and/or legal proceedings, 
including appellate proceedings, which are necessary or desirable in order to accomplish the 
inclusion of land pursuant to this Agreement.  The Fire District and the City also may agree as to 
the allocation of payment of all legal and other expenses associated with such actions or legal 
proceedings related to the inclusion or exclusion of land pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
d. The Fire District shall require City approval as an express condition of 

including any property into the Fire District that is not also annexed to the City.  This condition 
shall be contained in any Resolution for inclusion of real property adopted by the Fire District 
Board.  In granting or denying approval, the City may consider the level of financial contribution 
that the proposed inclusion is expected to make to the Fire District and whether the proposed 
inclusion will dilute the services provided by the Fire District to the City and its citizens and their 
property.  The City shall have 90 calendar days from the date the City's approval for a proposed 



  
  

             Intergovernmental Agreement For Transfer of Emergency Services Page 4 
881899.14 

inclusion is requested to affirmatively grant or deny such approval.  The City's failure to 
affirmatively grant or deny approval within such time shall be deemed an approval of the 
proposed inclusion.  
 

e. The City shall not seek to exclude any property from the Fire District.   
The Fire District shall not exclude real property that is within the City's corporate boundaries 
without the prior approval of the City Council, unless otherwise required by law.  

 
2. Service Area.  The Fire District's service area may extend beyond the City's 

corporate boundaries through automatic or mutual aid agreements with other emergency 
services providers. 
 

ARTICLE III 
Transfer of Emergency Services 

 
1.  Transfer Date; Assumption of Obligations and Responsibilities.  On and 

after the Organization Date, the Fire District shall be solely responsible for providing Emergency 
Services to the citizens and property within its jurisdiction.  The City's Fire Rescue Department 
shall cease providing Emergency Services on the Organization Date.  

 
2. Pre-Existing Contracts and Agreements.  As soon as practicable after the 

Organization Date, the Parties shall jointly evaluate all contracts and agreements that the City or 
the City's Fire Rescue Department has entered into with any other private or governmental 
entity or person that relates to the provision of Emergency Services, and shall mutually 
determine whether each contract or agreement should be continued or terminated.  The Parties 
shall take such reasonable actions as are necessary and appropriate to substitute the Fire 
District for the City on contracts or agreements that will be continued, and to terminate the 
contracts and agreements, if any, the Parties mutually determine should be terminated. 

 
3. Emergency Services During the Transition Period.   
 

a. During the Transition Period, all of the City's Emergency Services 
personnel will remain employees or volunteers of the City and the City will continue to own the 
Fire Apparatus, Fire Equipment, Fire Stations, Fire Administration Office, Training Equipment, 
and Training Site.  During the Transition Period, the City agrees to lease its Emergency 
Services personnel and its Fire Apparatus, Fire Equipment, Fire Stations, Fire Administration 
Office, Training Equipment, and Training Site to the Fire District.  The City shall invoice the Fire 
District monthly for the costs actually incurred by the City during the preceding month incident to 
the City's continued employment of the Emergency Services personnel and ownership of the 
Fire Apparatus, Fire Equipment, Fire Stations, Fire Administration Office, Training Equipment, 
and Training Site, but such invoices shall not include those costs related to insurance, 
maintenance, and repair identified in subparagraph (c) below.  The Fire District shall remit 
payment to the City within 30 calendar days of receiving an invoice.  Unless the Parties mutually 
agree to a different process, the Fire District's payments shall be made by wire transfer.  The 
Parties shall execute such additional agreements, contracts, and other documents as they may 
mutually deem necessary or appropriate from time to time to memorialize and/or accomplish the 
City's leasing of its Emergency Services personnel and its Fire Apparatus, Fire Equipment, Fire 
Stations, Fire Administration Office, Training Equipment, and Training Site to the Fire District 
during the Transition Period. 

 



  
  

             Intergovernmental Agreement For Transfer of Emergency Services Page 5 
881899.14 

b.  During the Transition Period, the Fire District shall maintain its financial 
accounts with the same financial institution as the City in order to facilitate the smooth transfer 
of funds between the two entities.  

 
c. During the Transition Period, the City shall continue such comprehensive 

casualty and liability insurance for the Fire Apparatus, Fire Equipment, Fire Stations, Fire 
Administration Office, Training Equipment, and Training Site as is maintained by the City 
immediately before the Organization Date.  During the Transition Period, the City shall continue 
to be responsible for such maintenance and repair of the Fire Apparatus, Fire Equipment, Fire 
Stations, Fire Administration Office, Training Equipment, and Training Site as are necessary to 
maintain the Fire Apparatus, Fire Equipment, Fire Stations, Fire Administration Office, Training 
Equipment, and Training Site in good working order and free from material damage and/or 
breakdown, without regard to the cause or reason that such maintenance or repair is 
necessitated.  Maintenance or repair includes the replacement of the Fire Apparatus, Fire 
Equipment, Fire Stations, Fire Administration Office, Training Equipment, and/or Training Site 
where replacement is the most practical or economical alternative.   
 

d. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the Parties 
shall take all actions necessary and appropriate to ensure, to the extent reasonably practicable, 
that the level of Emergency Services provided during the Transition Period will be equal to or 
greater than the level of Emergency Services being provided by the City's Fire Rescue 
Department immediately before the Organization Date.     
 

4. Emergency Services After the Transition Period.     
 

a. Once Step Two of the Funding Process (Section V(2)(b), Service Plan) 
has been accomplished and the Fire District has received sufficient ad valorem revenues and 
other funds to be financially capable of providing the Emergency Services directly to the 
citizens and property within its jurisdiction, the City's Emergency Services personnel shall 
become employees or volunteers of the Fire District as provided by Articles VI and VII below, 
ownership of the City's Fire Apparatus, Fire Equipment, Fire Stations, and Training Equipment 
shall be transferred to the Fire District, and the Fire Administration Office and Training Site 
shall be leased to the Fire District.  Once the Emergency Services personnel, Fire Apparatus, 
Fire Equipment, Fire Stations, and Training Equipment have been transferred to the Fire 
District, and the Fire Administration Office and Training Site have been leased to the Fire 
District, the Fire District shall solely provide the Emergency Services directly to the citizens and 
property within its jurisdiction, and the City shall cease all participation in the same.  

 
b. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the Parties 

shall take all actions necessary and appropriate to ensure, to the extent reasonable practicable, 
that the level of Emergency Services provided during the transfer of the City's Emergency 
Services personnel, Fire Apparatus, Fire Equipment, Fire Stations, and Training Equipment, and 
the lease of the Fire Administration Office and Training Site, to the Fire District will be equal to 
or greater than the level of Emergency Services provided during the Transition Period.     

 
c. Once the Fire Apparatus, Fire Equipment, Fire Stations, and Training 

Equipment have been transferred to the Fire District, the Fire District shall provide 
comprehensive casualty and liability insurance for the Fire Apparatus, Fire Equipment, Fire 
Stations, and Training Equipment, and shall be responsible for the maintenance and repair of 
the same.  The Fire District Board, in its sole discretion, may elect to purchase all or a portion of 
the comprehensive casualty and liability insurance, and/or maintenance and repair services, 
from or through the City pursuant to Article V below.  The City shall continue to provide 



  
  

             Intergovernmental Agreement For Transfer of Emergency Services Page 6 
881899.14 

comprehensive casualty and liability insurance for, and shall continue to be responsible for the 
maintenance and repair of, the Fire Administration Office and Training Site as provided by 
Article III(3)(c) above. 

 
5. No Assumption of Liability for the Intentional or Negligent Acts or 

Omissions of the City.  The Parties expressly agree that the City shall remain solely 
responsible for the intentional or negligent acts or omissions of the City, and its council 
members, officers, employees, volunteers, and agents, that occur prior to date on which all of 
the City's Emergency Services personnel, Fire Apparatus, Fire Equipment, Fire Stations, and 
Training Equipment are transferred to the Fire District, and the Fire Administration Office and 
Training Site are leased to the Fire District, and that, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in 
this Agreement, the Fire District is not assuming responsibility or liability for such intentional or 
negligent acts or omissions. 

 
6. No Assumption of Liability for the Intentional or Negligent Acts or 

Omissions of the Fire District.  The Parties expressly agree that the Fire District shall remain 
solely responsible for the intentional or negligent acts or omissions of the Fire District, and its 
directors, officers, employees, volunteers, and agents, that occur on or after the Organization 
Date, and that, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the City is not 
assuming responsibility or liability for such intentional or negligent acts or omissions. 
 

ARTICLE IV 
The City's Financial Obligations 

 
1. Annual Contribution.   
 

a. Each year the City shall contribute to the Fire District an amount equal to 
the Fire District's approved annual budget, less the amount of revenue the Fire District 
anticipates collecting from its property tax during the calendar year to which the budget applies 
("Annual Contribution"); provided, however, that if the Fire District's proposed annual budget 
and anticipated property tax revenue in a given year would cause a percentage increase in the 
City's Annual Contribution that is greater than that of the Consumer Price Index over the City's 
Annual Contribution in the immediately preceding year, the Fire District Board shall obtain the 
City Council's approval of the Annual Contribution prior to adopting the budget; if the City 
Council does not grant such approval, the budget adopted by the Fire District Board shall not 
require the City's Annual Contribution to increase by a percentage exceeding that of the 
Consumer Price Index. 

  
b. As provided by Article V(2)(a) of the Service Plan, the City's estimated 

Annual Contribution amount for the year 2012 is $1,426,163, which represents the approximate 
amount of funding that the City has budgeted for its Fire Rescue Department in year 2012.  All 
amounts in this Agreement, Section V of the Service Plan, and the Financial Plan (Exhibit B, 
Service Plan) related to the City's budget and or budgeted amounts are based upon the City's 
2012 budget, current as of the time of submission of the Service Plan to the City Council.  The 
Parties agree that such amounts may be adjusted as appropriate according to any changes that 
are subsequently made by the City to its 2012 budget. 

 
c. The City shall pay the Annual Contribution to the Fire District in four equal 

payments, such payments to be made on or before the first day of January, April, July, and 
October of each year.  Unless the Parties mutually agree to a different process, the Annual 
Contribution payments shall be made by wire transfer.  If the City fails or refuses to pay the 
Annual Contribution to the Fire District in accordance with the terms of this subparagraph (c), 



  
  

             Intergovernmental Agreement For Transfer of Emergency Services Page 7 
881899.14 

the Fire District may take legal or equitable action to obtain the Annual Contribution payments 
from the City.   

 
d. If at any time an objective analysis of the Fire District's budget and most 

recent audited financial statements demonstrates that the Fire District's revenue from all 
sources (other than the City's Annual Contribution) is sufficient to support and sustain the Fire 
District's level of Emergency Services into the future, and that the City's Annual Contribution is 
no longer needed in the best interests of the Fire District, the City, and the community, the City 
Council may take action to permanently terminate the City's Annual Contribution to the Fire 
District.  The objective analysis must include, without limitation, consideration of the following: 

 
i. The Fire District's current and projected ability to meet the minimum 

nationally recognized standards for staffing, response times, 
apparatus/equipment deployment, etc. established by the National Fire 
Protection Association; 
 

ii. The Fire District's current ISO rating and any anticipated change thereto; 
 

iii. The Fire District's current and projected capital improvement and 
replacement needs; 

 
iv. The Fire District's current and projected staffing and training needs; 

 
v. The Fire District's current indebtedness, if any, and the repayment 

schedule of such indebtedness; and 
 

vi. The current and projected need for Emergency Services within the Fire 
District's jurisdiction and service area, including those portions, if any, of 
the Fire District's jurisdiction and service area that extend beyond the 
City's corporate boundaries through inclusion or automatic or mutual aid 
agreements. 

 
The City Council shall notify the Fire District at least 60 days before taking action to permanently 
terminate the City's Annual Contribution to the Fire District, and shall allow the Fire District such 
time to submit written comment thereon.  If the City Council takes action to permanently 
terminate the City's Annual Contribution to the Fire District, the Fire District Board and the City 
Council shall mutually agree on the date and procedure by which the City's Annual Contribution 
shall be permanently terminated.  If, despite their good faith efforts, the Fire District Board and 
the City Council cannot agree on such a date and procedure, then the City's Annual 
Contribution shall be permanently terminated in its entirety at 11:30 p.m. on December 31 of the 
year after the year in which the City Council takes action to approve the permanent termination 
of the City's Annual Contribution. 

 
2. TABOR Reserve Payment.  Within 90 days of the Organization Date, the City 

shall make a one-time payment to the Fire District of an amount sufficient to allow the Fire 
District to fully fund the 3 percent emergency reserve obligation required by Article X, Section 20 
of the Colorado Constitution in its initial year of operation ("TABOR Reserve Payment").  The 
Parties shall mutually agree on the amount of the TABOR Reserve Payment to be contributed to 
the Fire District.  Unless the Parties mutually agree to a different process, the TABOR Reserve 
Payment shall be made by wire transfer.  If the City fails or refuses to pay the TABOR Reserve 
Payment to the Fire District within the time specified in this Paragraph 2, the Fire District may 
take legal or equitable action to obtain the TABOR Reserve Payment from the City.  



  
  

             Intergovernmental Agreement For Transfer of Emergency Services Page 8 
881899.14 

3. Transfer of Emergency Contingency Fund Revenue.   
 

a. On or before April 15 of the calendar year immediately following the year 
in which the property tax transfer provided for in Section V(2)(b) of the Service Plan is complete, 
the City shall remit to the Fire District a portion of the funds no longer required to be held in the 
City's Emergency Contingency Fund ("ECF Revenue") as a result of a reduction in the amount 
of funds the City is paying for Emergency Services in a given fiscal year.  The Parties shall 
mutually agree on the amount of ECF Revenue to be transferred to the Fire District; provided, 
however, that the amount of ECF Revenue to be transferred to the Fire District shall not exceed 
the difference between:  (i) the amount of funds the City was required to maintain in its 
Emergency Contingency Fund for the cost of Emergency Services immediately before the 
property tax transfer provided for in Section V(2)(b) of the Service Plan is complete, and (ii) the 
reduced amount of funds the City is required to maintain in its Emergency Contingency Fund for 
the cost of Emergency Services immediately after such property tax transfer is complete.  
Unless the Parties mutually agree to a different process, the ECF Revenue payment shall be 
made by wire transfer.   

 
b. The Fire District shall use the ECF Revenue to begin capitalizing a 

reserve fund. 
 

c. If the City fails or refuses to pay the ECF Revenue to the Fire District 
within the time specified in subparagraph (a) above, the Fire District may take legal or equitable 
action to obtain the ECF Revenue payment from the City.   

 
4. No Right of Offset.  The City's financial obligations set forth in this Article IV are 

absolute and unconditional in all respects, and shall be paid without notice, demand, 
counterclaim, setoff, deduction, or defense and without suspension, deferment, diminution or 
reduction. 

 
ARTICLE V 

Administrative Services 
  

1. Administrative Services to be Provided. Certain administrative services are 
essential to the efficient and effective administration and operation of the Fire District, including 
but not limited to, human resources, benefits administration, risk management, payroll and 
finance services, general liability insurance, workers' compensation and unemployment 
insurance, Information Technology (IT) support, legal expenses, Fire District Board expenses, 
and annual audit expenses (collectively, "Administrative Services").  The Fire District Board 
has the right, in its sole discretion, to determine the Administrative Services to be provided to 
the Fire District and how such Administrative Services will be provided.  The Parties expect that, 
at least initially, some of the Administrative Services likely will be more efficiently provided 
through the City, due to the scale of operations and the Fire District's historic relationship with 
the City.  The Parties anticipate that initially the Fire District will purchase the following 
Administrative Services from the City:  

 
a. Human resources, benefits administration, and risk management; 
  
b. Payroll and finance services;  

 
 
 



  
  

             Intergovernmental Agreement For Transfer of Emergency Services Page 9 
881899.14 

c. General liability insurance, and workers' compensation/unemployment 
insurance; and, 

 
d. IT support services.   

 
2. Supplies, Services, and Asset Management.  During the Transition Period, the 

Fire District shall pay directly for all items, supplies, and services specifically identified in the 
Fire District's "supplies and services" budget and asset management plan.  Such items, 
supplies, and services may, but need not, include items such as personal protective equipment, 
self-contained breathing apparatus, training, communications equipment, or small tools.  The 
Fire District may seek guidance and/or assistance from the City finance director regarding the 
Fire District's direct payment for such items, supplies, and services.  
 

3. Administrative Services Contract.  Within 45 days of the Organization Date, 
and on or before December 31 of each calendar year thereafter, the City and the Fire District 
shall enter into a mutually acceptable Administrative Services Contract, which shall list the 
specific Administrative Services to be provided by the City, the level and frequency of each such 
service, and the amount the Fire District shall pay the City for each such service. 

  
4. Payment on Administrative Services Contract. The Administrative Services 

Contract shall provide that the City shall invoice the Fire District monthly for the Administrative 
Services provided by the City pursuant to the Administrative Services Contract during the 
preceding month.  The Fire District shall remit payment to the City within 30 calendar days of 
receiving an invoice.  Unless the Parties mutually agree to a different process, the Fire District's 
payments shall be made by wire transfer.  

 
5. Termination of Administrative Services Contract.  The Administrative 

Services Contract shall give both the Fire District and the City the individual right and discretion 
to terminate the Administrative Services Contract for any or no reason upon 90 days prior 
written notice to the other Party.  Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the 
Parties shall have no obligation to enter into an Administrative Services Contract in any year 
following the year of termination. 

 
ARTICLE VI 

Paid Emergency Services Personnel 
 

1. During the Transition Period.   
 

a. During the Transition Period, all of the City's paid Emergency Services 
personnel will remain City employees, and the City shall lease the City's paid Emergency 
Services personnel to the Fire District.  The City shall be solely responsible for the employees' 
compensation, benefits, and terms and conditions of employment, and the Fire District Board 
shall have no authority to control, manage, or otherwise direct the same.  As provided by Article 
III(3)(a) above, the City shall invoice the Fire District monthly for the costs actually incurred by 
the City incident to its continued employment of the City's paid Emergency Services personnel 
during the preceding month.  The Fire District shall remit payment to the City within 30 calendar 
days of receiving an invoice. Unless the Parties mutually agree to a different process, the Fire 
District's payments shall be made by wire transfer.  The Parties shall execute such additional 
agreements, contracts, and other documents as they may mutually deem necessary or 
appropriate from time to time to memorialize and/or accomplish the City's leasing of its paid 
Emergency Services personnel to the Fire District during the Transition Period. 

 



  
  

             Intergovernmental Agreement For Transfer of Emergency Services Page 10 
881899.14 

b. The City may hire up to nine part-time firefighters during the Transition 
Period.  Such hiring shall commence upon receipt by the Fire District of sufficient property tax 
revenue to fund the hiring and continued employment of all or a portion of such firefighters.  The 
part-time firefighters shall not work more than 1,599 hours in a calendar year and shall not be 
eligible to receive or participate in benefits provided by the City, except for unemployment 
compensation insurance and workers' compensation insurance.  The City shall invoice the Fire 
District monthly for any costs actually incurred in hiring and employing the firefighters during the 
preceding month.  The Fire District shall remit payment to the City within 30 calendar days of 
receiving an invoice.  Unless the Parties mutually agree to a different process, the Fire District's 
payments shall be made by wire transfer.  Notwithstanding the above, the City shall not begin 
hiring the part-time firefighters if any of the funding necessary for such hiring and/or employment 
is or will not be available, or if the City and the Fire District mutually agree that such hiring 
and/or employment should not occur or should occur only at a later time. 

 
c. The City may hire one part-time administrative assistant (approximately 

20 hours per work week) during the Transition Period.  Such hiring shall be made as soon as 
reasonably practicable following the Organization Date.  The City shall invoice the Fire District 
monthly for any costs actually incurred in hiring and employing the part-time administrative 
assistant during the preceding month.  The Fire District shall remit payment to the City within 30 
calendar days of receiving an invoice.  Unless the Parties mutually agree to a different process, 
the Fire District's payments shall be made by wire transfer.  Notwithstanding the above, the City 
shall not begin hiring the part-time administrative assistant if any of the funding necessary for 
such hiring and/or employment is or will not be available, or if the City and the Fire District 
mutually agree that such hiring and/or employment should not occur or should occur only at a 
later time. 

 

2. After the Transition Period.   
 

a. Once Step Two of the Funding Process (Section V(2)(b), Service Plan) 
has been accomplished and the Fire District has received sufficient ad valorem revenues and 
other funds to be financially capable of providing the Emergency Services directly to the citizens 
and property within its jurisdiction, the Fire District shall make an offer to employ each City 
Emergency Services employee in the position held and at the compensation earned as a City 
employee at the time the Fire District makes the offer.  No City Emergency Services employee 
shall be required to accept the Fire District's offer of employment; however, the City shall 
provide each City Emergency Services employee with a notice that his/her employment with the 
City will terminate on the date on which the Fire District's offer of employment expires, 
regardless of whether the employee accepts the Fire District's offer. 

 
b. Except for the part-time administrative assistant, each City Emergency 

Services employee who accepts employment with the Fire District pursuant to Paragraph 2(a) 
above, shall, as a condition of employment, be required to enter into an employment contract 
that shall contain, at a minimum, the following terms and conditions: i) the employment contract 
shall be for a period of 36 months from the date of hire; ii) during the 36 month period, the 
employee shall receive compensation equal to the compensation the employee received as a 
City employee at the time the Fire District made the offer of employment; iii) during the 36 
month period, the employee shall receive substantially the same benefits, if any, the employee 
received as a City employee at the time the Fire District made the offer of employment; and iv) 
during the 36 month period, the Fire District may only terminate the employee for "just cause", 
which shall be defined as one or more of the following:  

 
 



  
  

             Intergovernmental Agreement For Transfer of Emergency Services Page 11 
881899.14 

 
i. Failure to perform duties satisfactorily; 
 

ii. Violation of any Fire District, rule, policy, or procedure, or any federal, 
state, or local law or regulation; 

 
iii. Insubordination to a higher ranking Fire District employee or volunteer, 

the Fire District Board, or an individual Director; 
 

iv. Conviction of, a plea of guilty to, or failure to contest, a crime that bears 
on the employee's fitness to perform the duties of the position; 

 
v. Falsification of, or material omission from, any Fire District or City record, 

whether in electronic or paper form; 
 

vi. Unauthorized or improper use of Fire District vehicles, equipment, or 
apparatus; 

 
vii. Excessive absences or tardiness;  

 
viii. Engaging in unprofessional behavior while on duty or performing any Fire 

District activity; 
 

ix. Failure to maintain the required certification(s), training, or other 
qualifications for the position;  

 
x. Elimination of position or reduction in force.  

 
c. During the 36 month period, the Fire District Board may, at its sole 

discretion, modify the compensation of any employee who entered into an employment contract 
pursuant to subparagraph (b) above; provided, however, that such employee's compensation 
shall not at any time during the 36 month period be less than the compensation the employee 
received as a City employee at the time the Fire District made the offer of employment.  

 
d. At the end of the 36 month period, the Fire District shall have no 

obligation to extend any employment contract entered into pursuant to subparagraph (b) above, 
or to enter into new employment contracts with any of the former City employees, and the 
employees shall become "at-will" employees for all purposes. 

 
e. For the 36 month period following the Transition Period, the Fire District 

will, to the extent reasonably practicable, maintain personnel rules, policies, and procedures that 
are substantially the same as those historically maintained by the City in order to facilitate a 
smooth transfer of the City's paid Emergency Services employees to the Fire District.  
Thereafter, the Fire District's personnel rules, policies, and procedures, and its employee 
compensation and benefits, may differ from those maintained by the City, as the Fire District 
Board deems appropriate in its sole discretion, considering such factors as applicable laws and 
regulations, industry standards, historic practice, financial and economic conditions, and the 
best interests of the Fire District and the community.   

 
f. The Parties shall execute such additional agreements, contracts, and 

other documents as they may mutually deem necessary or appropriate from time to time to 



  
  

             Intergovernmental Agreement For Transfer of Emergency Services Page 12 
881899.14 

memorialize and/or accomplish the transfer of the City's paid Emergency Services personnel to 
the Fire District. 
 

ARTICLE VII 
Volunteer Emergency Services Personnel 

 
1. During the Transition Period.  During the Transition Period, all of the City's 

volunteer Emergency Services personnel will remain City volunteers, and the City shall lease 
the City's volunteer Emergency Services personnel to the Fire District.  The City shall be solely 
responsible for the volunteers' stipends (if any), benefits, expense reimbursements, and the 
terms and conditions of volunteer service, and the Fire District Board shall have no authority to 
control, manage, or otherwise direct the same.  As provided by Article III(3)(a), the City shall 
invoice the Fire District monthly for the costs actually incurred by the City incident to the 
continued service of the City's Emergency Services volunteers during the preceding month.  
The Fire District shall remit payment to the City within 30 calendar days of receiving an invoice. 
Unless the Parties mutually agree to a different process, the Fire District's payments shall be 
made by wire transfer.  The Parties shall execute such additional documents as they may 
mutually deem necessary or appropriate from time to time to memorialize and/or accomplish the 
City's leasing of its volunteer Emergency Services personnel to the Fire District during the 
Transition Period. 
 

2. After the Transition Period.   
 

a. Once  Step Two of the Funding Process (Section V(2)(b), Service Plan) 
has been accomplished and the Fire District has received sufficient ad valorem revenues and 
other funds to be financially capable of providing the Emergency Services directly to the citizens 
and property within its jurisdiction, the Fire District shall accept all of the City's volunteer 
Emergency Services personnel into the Fire District’s Volunteer Program without such 
personnel being required to take any separate action to join the Fire District’s Volunteer 
Program.  The Fire District Board shall, in its sole discretion, establish the components of the 
Fire District's Volunteer Program, which may, among other components, include a Volunteer 
Firefighter Program, Reserve Volunteer Firefighter Program, Active Retiree Program, 
Administrative Support Volunteer Program, and/or Auxiliary Volunteer Program. 

  
b. Any City Emergency Services volunteer who is accepted into the Fire 

District’s Volunteer Program, but who does not want to participate in the Fire District’s Volunteer 
Program, may withdraw from the Fire District’s Volunteer Program by submitting a written notice 
of withdrawal to the Fire District’s Fire Chief. 

 
c. The City shall provide each City Emergency Services volunteer with a 

notice that his/her volunteer service with the City will terminate on the date that the Fire District 
accepts the volunteer Emergency Services personnel into the Fire District's Volunteer Program, 
whether or not the volunteer participates in the Fire District's Volunteer Program.  

 
d. The Fire District Board shall have the sole discretion and authority to 

determine the terms and conditions of volunteer service and the stipends (if any), benefits, and 
expense reimbursements to be provided to the volunteer Emergency Services personnel under 
the Fire District’s Volunteer Firefighter Program.  The Fire District Board's discretion and 
authority pursuant to this subparagraph (d) includes, without limitation, the discretion and 
authority to establish a Length of Service Award Plan (LOSAP) for the benefit of the volunteer 
Emergency Services personnel.  

 



  
  

             Intergovernmental Agreement For Transfer of Emergency Services Page 13 
881899.14 

e.  The City is the sponsor of the City of Evans Volunteer Firefighter Pension 
Fund ("Pension Fund") for the purpose of providing pension benefits to qualified volunteer 
firefighters in accordance with the Colorado Volunteer Firefighter Pension Act, C.R.S. § 31-30-
1100, et seq. ("Pension Act").  The Pension Fund is administered by the Fire and Police 
Pension Association ("FPPA").  During the Transition Period, the Fire District shall establish a 
new volunteer firefighter pension fund under the Pension Act ("New Pension Fund").    As soon 
as reasonably practicable after the Fire District establishes the New Pension Fund, the City, the 
Fire District, and the New Pension Fund shall enter into a written agreement to transfer all of the 
Pension Fund's assets to the New Pension Fund at the end of the Transition Period, which 
agreement shall at a minimum address: 

 
i. The date and method by which the Pension Fund's assets will be 

transferred to the New Pension Fund; 
 

ii. The level of pension benefits to be provided, which shall not be 
less than the level of pension benefits being provided by the City on the date the City's 
volunteer firefighters are accepted into the Fire District's Volunteer Program; provided, that the 
Fire District may pro rate pension benefits in accordance with C.R.S. § 31-30-1124 if at any time 
there are insufficient funds to meet the benefits obligations; 

 
iii. Recognition of years of volunteer service to the City Fire Rescue 

Department toward an individual's vesting in pension benefits; provided, that such volunteer 
service meets the State training requirements and any additional requirements imposed by the 
City to maintain "good standing" for purposes of receiving pension credit; 

 
iv. Maintaining the City's 10-year Early Vesting Program, by which a 

volunteer firefighter who completes 10 years of continuous, qualified volunteer services for the 
City becomes vested in a pension equal to one-half of the benefit vested in a qualified volunteer 
firefighter who completes 20 years of volunteer services.  The pension benefit shall be pro rated 
equally for a qualified volunteer firefighter who provides between 10 and 20 years of volunteer 
services to the City.  A volunteer participating in the New Pension Fund will be given credit for 
years of continuous, qualified volunteer services to the City; and,  

 
v. Taking such actions as are necessary and appropriate for FPPA 

to administer the New Pension Fund without an interruption in pension benefit payments to 
eligible volunteer firefighters.  

 
f. The Fire District Board shall have the sole discretion and authority to 

terminate all or any portion of its Volunteer Program, and/or to transition its personnel system to 
an all-paid (career) firefighter force.  

 
ARTICLE VIII 

Acquisition and Transfer of Real and Personal Property 
 

1. Acquisition of Real and Personal Property.  The City may purchase one or 
more Fire Apparatus, Fire Equipment, or Training Equipment during the Transition Period.  Such 
purchase shall be made as soon as reasonably practicable following the Organization Date.  
The City shall invoice the Fire District monthly for the actual cost of the Fire Apparatus, Fire 
Equipment, or Training Equipment purchased during the preceding month.  If the City purchases 
a Fire Apparatus, Fire Equipment, and/or Training Equipment through a lease-purchase or other 
financing mechanism, the City's monthly invoice shall include only the debt service payments 
made by the City during the preceding month.  The Fire District shall remit payment to the City 



  
  

             Intergovernmental Agreement For Transfer of Emergency Services Page 14 
881899.14 

within 30 calendar days of receiving an invoice.  Unless the Parties mutually agree to a different 
process, the Fire District's payments shall be made by wire transfer.  Notwithstanding the 
above, the City shall not begin purchasing the Fire Apparatus, Fire Equipment, or Training 
Equipment if any of the funding necessary for such purchase is or will not be available, or if the 
City and the Fire District mutually agree that such purchase should not occur or should occur 
only at a later time. 

 
2. Transfer of Real and Personal Property. Once Step Two of the Funding 

Process (Section V(2)(b), Service Plan) has been accomplished and the Fire District has 
received sufficient ad valorem revenues and other funds to be financially capable of providing 
the Emergency Services directly to the citizens and property within its jurisdiction, the City shall: 

 
a. Transfer and convey all right, title, and interest in and to all Fire 

Apparatus, Fire Equipment, and Training Equipment to the Fire District.  The Fire Apparatus, 
Fire Equipment, and Training Equipment shall be transferred "as-is" with no warranty by the 
City; provided, that the City shall assign any manufacturer's warranties on any Fire Apparatus, 
Fire Equipment, and Training Equipment if such warranties are still in force and effect. 
Conveyance of the Fire Apparatus, Fire Equipment, and Training Equipment shall be 
accomplished by one or more Bills of Sale in a form mutually acceptable to the Fire District and 
the City.  The City shall not receive any monetary consideration for transferring and conveying 
all right, title, and interest in and to all Fire Apparatus, Fire Equipment, and Training Equipment 
to the Fire District; 

 
b. Transfer and convey all right, title, and interest in and to the Fire Stations 

to the Fire District.  The City shall adopt an ordinance approving the conveyance of the Fire 
Stations and determining that it would not be in the best interest of the City's citizens to conduct 
an election regarding the same.  Conveyance of the Fire Stations shall be accomplished by Quit 
Claim Deeds in a form mutually acceptable to the Fire District and the City.  The City shall not 
receive any monetary consideration for transferring and conveying all right, title, and interest in 
and to the Fire Stations to the Fire District; 
 

c. The City shall lease the Fire Administration Office to the Fire District for a 
period of 99 years; the Fire District shall pay annual rent of $1.00.  During the Transition Period 
the Parties shall enter into a Fire Administration Office Lease Agreement in a form mutually 
acceptable to the Fire District and the City.  The Fire Administration Office Lease Agreement 
shall give either Party the right to terminate such lease at any time for any business reason 
upon 90 days prior written notice to the other Party; provided, however, that if the City 
terminates the Fire Administration Office Lease Agreement, it must offer the Fire District 
comparable alternative administration office space at the same rental rate for the balance of the 
99 year term; and  

 
d. The City shall lease the Training Site to the Fire District for a period of 99 

years; the Fire District shall pay an annual rent of $1.00.  During the Transition Period the 
Parties shall enter into a Training Site Lease Agreement in a form mutually acceptable to the 
Fire District and the City.  The Training Site Lease Agreement shall give either Party the right to 
terminate the such lease at any time for any business reason upon 90 days prior written notice 
to the other Party; provided, however, that if the City terminates the Training Site Lease 
Agreement, it must offer the Fire District a comparable alternative training site at the same 
rental rate for the balance of the 99 year term.  
 



  
  

             Intergovernmental Agreement For Transfer of Emergency Services Page 15 
881899.14 

3. Additional Documents.  The Parties shall execute such additional documents 
and take such actions as are reasonably necessary to accomplish the requirements of 
Paragraph 2 above. 

   
ARTICLE IX 

Collaboration 
 

The Service Plan intends that the City and the Fire District maintain a close, 
collaborative relationship.  Consistent with this intent, the Parties agree that:    

 
1. Fire District Name.  The Board shall not seek to change the name of the Fire 

District without the prior consent of the City Council.  
 
2. Appearance of Apparatus and Equipment.  Initially, the general appearance 

of, and logos, emblems, and wording on, the Emergency Services equipment, apparel, and 
apparatus will remain substantially the same.  The Fire District may at a future time redesign the 
appearance of such equipment, apparel, and apparatus if the Fire District Board finds it to be in 
the best interest of the Fire District and the community.  

 
3. Historical Services to the City.  During and after the Transition Period, the Fire 

District will provide the following services to the City and its citizens that historically have been 
provided by the City's Fire Rescue Department.  The services shall be provided at no cost to the 
City unless the Parties mutually agree otherwise.  If at a future time the Fire District determines 
that it lacks the financial, staffing, or other resources to provide one or more of the following 
services, it will notify the City of this fact and the Parties will in good faith work together to 
determine if there are actions that can be taken by one or both of the Parties to enable the Fire 
District to continue to provide these historical services. 
 

a. City Fire Extinguishers.  The Fire District will service the City's fire 
extinguishers located at or within all City buildings, facilities, and vehicles once each calendar 
year. 

 
b. CPR/First Responder Training.  The Fire District will conduct a CPR/First 

Responder training for City employees at least once each calendar year. 
 

c. Community Events.  The Fire District will provide one engine and at least 
two firefighters to assist the City at the Evans Fest, Pancake Breakfast, and Neighborhood Night 
Out.   

 
4. Fire Chief's Participation in the City's Senior Management Team.  The Fire 

District's Fire Chief will, to the extent practicable, participate in meetings, work/study sessions, 
and other activities of the City's senior management team to provide input on Emergency 
Services issues.  The appropriate City personnel will provide the Fire Chief with as much 
advance notice as possible of those meetings, work/study sessions, etc. where Emergency 
Services issues will be considered, and the Fire Chief shall make every reasonable effort to 
attend such meetings, work/study sessions, etc. 

 
5. Development of Municipal Services.  The City shall coordinate with the Fire 

District in the development and expansion of municipal services, such as water supply, street 
construction or modification, etc., to ensure that the Fire District's Emergency Services needs 
are appropriately addressed. The Fire Chief or his/her designee shall be included in the 
conceptual design phase of any such municipal services. 



  
  

             Intergovernmental Agreement For Transfer of Emergency Services Page 16 
881899.14 

 
6. Emergency Management.  The Parties shall cooperate in good faith on the 

development, implementation, and management of emergency operations within the City and 
the Fire District, including the development, implementation, and management of any applicable 
municipal, county, and/or other regional emergency management plans.  The Parties shall 
execute such additional documents and take such additional actions as are reasonably 
necessary to accomplish the requirements of this Paragraph 6. 

 
7. Fire District Policies Significantly Impacting the City.  At least 30 calendar 

days before taking final action on a policy that will have a significant impact on the City, its 
citizens or their property, Fire District Board, directly or through the Fire Chief, will confer with 
the City Council or the City's senior management team regarding the proposed policy.  The City 
and Fire District shall use their good faith best efforts to resolve any concerns the City may have 
regarding the proposed policy.   

 
8. Annual Report.  On or before March 1 of each year, the Fire District will provide 

a written report to the City Council that summarizes the Fire District’s Emergency Services to 
the City's citizens and their property during the preceding year.  The annual report will be 
prepared in such form and content as the Fire District Board and City Council shall mutually 
determine, and will include, without limitation: a) the number of emergency incidents to which 
Fire District personnel were dispatched; b) the average response time; c) fire prevention and 
public education activities; and d) training of Fire District personnel.  The Fire District also shall 
provide a copy of its most recent audited financial statements to the City Council within fifteen 
days of the Fire District Board's acceptance thereof. 

 
9. Annual Joint Meeting.  The City Council and the Fire District Board shall hold 

an annual joint meeting for the purpose of discussing matters directly or indirectly relating to or 
affecting the Fire District's provision of Emergency Services to the City, its citizens and their 
property, unless both Parties mutually agree otherwise.  The annual joint meeting shall be held 
on or before May 30 of each year, or as soon thereafter as is reasonably practicable. The City 
and the Fire District shall each pay one-half of all costs and expenses incurred in conducting the 
joint annual meeting. The joint annual meeting shall be conducted in accordance with the 
Colorado Sunshine Law and shall be open to the public, except for any executive session duly 
called and held in accordance with applicable law, including the Colorado "common interest" 
doctrine. 

 
10. Fire District Transparency.  The Fire District Board shall comply fully with all 

federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, and regulations governing the transparency and 
conduct of the Fire District Board, including, without limitation: 

 
a. Colorado Sunshine Law (Open Meetings), C.R.S. § 24-6-401 et seq.; 
 
b. 72-Hour Posted Notice of Public Meetings, C.R.S. § 32-1-903; 

 
c. Executive Session, C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4); 

 
d. Colorado Public (Open) Records Act, C.R.S. § 24-72-201 et seq.; 

 
e. Special District Transparency Notice, C.R.S. § 32-1-809; 

 
 

 



  
  

             Intergovernmental Agreement For Transfer of Emergency Services Page 17 
881899.14 

f. Conflict of Interest Disclosure, C.R.S. §§ 31-1-902(3), 18-8-308; and 
 

g. Standards of Conduct and Fiduciary Duty, C.R.S. § 24-18-101 et seq. 
 

ARTICLE X 
Fire Code Adoption and Enforcement 

 
1. Fire Code Adoption or Modification.  After the Effective Date, either Party may 

propose (a) modifications to the Fire Code then in effect or (b) adoption of a different edition of 
the Fire Code, with or without amendments.  The Party seeking to modify the Fire Code then in 
effect or to adopt a new edition of the Fire Code shall provide 60 days prior written notice to the 
other Party.  The Parties shall engage in good faith efforts to resolve any concerns one or both 
of the Parties may have regarding modifying the Fire Code then in effect or adopting a new 
edition of the Fire Code.  The City Council shall have the final authority to approve or reject any 
proposal to modify the Fire Code then in effect, or adopt a new edition of the Fire Code, for use 
within the City's corporate boundaries.  If the City Council approves a proposal to modify the 
Fire Code then in effect or to adopt a new edition of the Fire Code, such approval shall be set 
forth in an Ordinance that details the modification(s) to the Fire Code then in effect or the 
adoption a new edition of the Fire Code and any amendments thereto.  The City shall promptly 
provide a copy of the approved Ordinance to the Fire District.  The Fire District Board shall 
adopt a Resolution approving the City Ordinance as soon thereafter as reasonably practicable.  

 
2. Plan Reviews.  The City shall promptly refer to the Fire District all applications 

for modification to or renovation of existing properties, facilities, or buildings, and any new 
construction or development, which includes review by the Fire District under the Fire Code.  
The Fire District shall complete its review within 60 days of receipt from the City, unless the size 
or complexity of the project requires additional time.  The Fire District shall state in writing 
whether the application is "approved without condition or comments", "approved with conditions 
or comments", or "disapproved".  If the Fire District states an application is "disapproved", it 
shall provide citation(s) to the applicable Fire Code provision(s) upon which the disapproval is 
based.  

 
3. Fees and Charges.  The Fire District may impose reasonable fees and charges 

as authorized by the Act and the Fire Code, including but not limited to, reasonable fees and 
charges for plan reviews, permits, inspections, false alarm inspections, etc. The Fire District 
shall be solely responsible for assessing and collecting such fees and charges.  

 
4. Enforcement of the Fire Code. The Fire District shall enforce the Fire Code.  If 

a question or dispute arises as to the proper interpretation of the Fire Code, the Fire Chief and 
the City’s Chief Building Official shall meet as soon as possible to resolve the question or 
dispute.  If, despite their good faith efforts, the Fire Chief and the Chief Building Official are 
unable to agree upon the proper interpretation of the Fire Code, the question or dispute shall be 
submitted to the Board of Appeals in accordance with the appeals procedure set forth in the Fire 
Code.  The Board of Appeals shall include at least one Fire District representative selected by 
the Fire District.   

 
As provided in the Act, the Fire District shall refer a Fire Code violation to the City 

Attorney for prosecution or to the District Attorney for prosecution in the appropriate District 
Court.  The City will assist the Fire District in enforcing the Fire Code in any Municipal Court 
action.  If the Fire Code violation is not satisfactorily resolved, or will not be satisfactorily 
resolved, through prosecution in Municipal Court or District Court, the Fire District may bring a 
civil action to enforce the Fire Code, utilizing the Fire District's legal counsel. 



  
  

             Intergovernmental Agreement For Transfer of Emergency Services Page 18 
881899.14 

 
5. Cooperative Arson Investigations.  The Parties agree to cooperate in 

investigating all fires of suspicious origin within the City's corporate boundaries.  The Fire 
District shall determine the cause and origin of all fires.  Immediately upon determining that a 
fire is of suspicious origin, the Fire District shall preserve the scene and shall present the facts 
of its investigation to the City's Police Department, which shall have primary responsibility for 
investigation of the case from that point. 

 
6. Communication and Cooperation.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that 

regular communication and continued cooperation are vital to the successful implementation of 
this Article X. The Parties' representatives shall periodically meet and confer regarding Fire 
Code adoption, administration and enforcement issues within the City's corporate boundaries, 
including but not limited to, plan review procedures, inspections, Fire Code enforcement, and 
any potential modifications to the Fire Code then in effect or adoption of a different edition of the 
Fire Code. 
 

ARTICLE XI 
Additional Provisions 

 
1. Relationship of the Parties.  By entering into this Agreement, the Parties are 

not creating, and shall not be construed as creating, a joint venture, partnership, authority or any 
other type of legal relationship, and each Party shall remain a separate and distinct entity for all 
purposes under this Agreement.  Neither the fact of this Agreement nor the Parties' 
performance of this Agreement shall in any manner alter each Party’s constitutional, statutory 
and common law rights, powers, duties, and authority, except to the extent expressly set forth in 
this Agreement.  

 
2. Legal Compliance.  In performing the terms of this Agreement, the Parties shall 

comply fully with all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, resolutions, operating 
procedures, rules, and/or regulations. 

 
3. Term and Termination.   
 

a.  This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall 
continue unless and until terminated pursuant to subparagraphs (b) and (c) below. 

 
b. The Parties expressly declare and intend that this Agreement is an 

essential part of the Service Plan approved by the City Council, which Service Plan plays a 
fundamental role in the Emergency Services provided by the Fire District.  Termination of this 
Agreement would significantly frustrate implementation of the Service Plan and could jeopardize 
the Fire District's efficient and effective provision of Emergency Services to the City and the Fire 
District's citizens and their property.  Accordingly, neither Party may unilaterally terminate this 
Agreement.  This Agreement may not be terminated unless:  

 
i. An Amended Service Plan that is mutually acceptable to the Fire 

District Board and the City Council is submitted to the City Council for approval pursuant to the 
Act; 

 
ii. The proposed Amended Service Plan removes this Agreement as 

an exhibit to the Amended Service Plan and adequately provides for the continued financial 
viability, and the efficient and effective administration and operation, of the Fire District without 
the terms, conditions, and covenants set forth in this Agreement;  



  
  

             Intergovernmental Agreement For Transfer of Emergency Services Page 19 
881899.14 

 
iii. The City Council approves the Amended Service Plan; and 
 
iv. The Amended Service Plan is recorded with the Weld County 

Clerk and Recorder.  
 

c. This Agreement shall terminate for all purposes on the date an Amended 
Service Plan satisfying the requirements of subparagraph (b) above is recorded with the Weld 
County Clerk and Recorder.  

 
4. Governmental Immunity.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as a 

waiver of the limitations on damages or any of the privileges, immunities, or defenses provided 
to, or enjoyed by, the Parties under common law or pursuant to statute, including but not limited 
to the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. § 24-10-101, et seq. 

 
5. Notice.  Any notice permitted or required by this Agreement shall be in writing 

and shall be sent by certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, to: 
 

 ATTN: City Manager 
 City of Evans 

1100 37th Street   
Evans, CO 80620  

 
ATTN:  Fire Chief  
Evans Fire Protection District 
1100 37th Street 
Evans, CO 80620  
 

  The notice shall be deemed to have been given when deposited in the United States 
mail and shall be deemed effective 72 hours after having been given. 
 

6. Headings and Captions.  The headings and captions used in this Agreement 
are for the convenience of reference only and do not form a part of this Agreement. 

 
7. Additional Terms.  Colorado law governs this Agreement. Jurisdiction and 

venue for any action arising under this Agreement or for the enforcement of this Agreement 
shall lie exclusively in the Weld County District Court.  This Agreement may be amended only 
by a document signed by both Parties.  If any provision is held invalid or unenforceable, all other 
provisions shall continue in full force and effect.  Waiver of a breach of this Agreement shall not 
operate or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of this Agreement. This 
Agreement is not intended to, and shall not, confer rights on any person or entity not named as 
a party to this Agreement, expressly including enforcement of any of the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement; all rights of action relating to such enforcement shall be strictly reserved to the 
Parties.  In any dispute arising from or relating to this Agreement, the prevailing Party shall be 
awarded its reasonable attorneys' fees, costs, and expenses, including any attorneys’ fees, 
costs, and expenses incurred in collecting upon any judgment, order, or award.  This Agreement 
may be executed in several counterparts and by facsimile, each of which shall be deemed an 
original and all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGE IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWS] 



  
  

             Intergovernmental Agreement For Transfer of Emergency Services Page 20 
881899.14 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement. 
 
 
 
CITY OF EVANS, a Colorado municipal corporation    
        
 
 
By: _______________________________   
      _________________, Mayor           
  
 
 
ATTESTED: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
________________, City Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
______________________, City Attorney 
 
 
 
EVANS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, 
a political subdivision of the State of Colorado       
 
 
 
By: _______________________________  
       ________________, President       
 
 
 
ATTESTED: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
________________, Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
___________, Attorney for the Fire District  


	CALL TO ORDER
	PLEDGE
	ROLL CALL
	PRESENTATION
	PROCLAMATION 
	Weld County Adoption Day 

	AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	CONSENT AGENDA
	November 15 Agenda
	Calendar
	Adoption Day Proclamation
	Approval of Minutes
	November 1, 2011 Minutes

	Staff Report - 2012 Impact Fees
	Ordinance No. 529-11 - Adjusting 2012 Impact Fees Final

	Staff Report - 2011 Budget Rev #3
	Ordinance No. 530-11 - Budget Rev #3
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Long Range Plans


	NEW BUSINESS
	Staff Report - Eliminate Funds
	Ordinance No. 531-2011 - Elminate Funds

	Staff Report - IGA Transfer of Emergency Services
	Resolution No. 31-2011 - Authorizing Transfer of Emergency Services
	FINAL Approved IGA for the Transfer of Emergency Services


	REPORTS
	City Manager
	City Attorney

	AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
	ADJOURNMENT



